

Centre Métropolis Atlantique Atlantic Metropolis Centre

ATLANTIC METROPOLIS CENTRE OF EXCELLENCE FOR RESEARCH ON IMMIGRATION, INTEGRATION AND CULTURAL DIVERSITY

ANNUAL REPORT OF ACTIVITIES: 2008-2009

June 2009

ATLANTIC METROPOLIS CENTRE/ CENTRE METROPOLIS ATLANTIQUE ANNUAL REPORT / RAPPORT ANNUEL 2008-2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
Introduction	3
Partie 1 : Objectifs du centre	4
A. Centre Objectives for 2008-09	4
B. Overview of Key Centre Activities	5
PART II: Knowledge Transfer/ Mobilization Activities	6
A. Centre and Domain Activities	6
B. Website	8
C. Newsletter	8
D. Media Coverage	8
PART III: Research	8
A. Projects Supported by Centre Funds: Faculty	8
B. Additional Research Funding Attracted by AMC Researchers	9
C. Research Outputs	9
D. Working Papers Series	10
PART IV: Networks and Partnerships	10
A. Regional and National Partnerships, Collaborations and	
Networking Activities	10
B. Governance Partners	11
C. International Linkages and Collaborations	11
D. Support from Consortium Universities	13
E. Non-Research Project specific Funding from	
Federal Departments	15
PART V: Training Activities	14
PART VI: Budget Projections for 2009-2010	14

List o	f Appendices	Page
Appendix 1:	Research Domains	16
Appendix 2:	Grant Competition	21
Appendix 3:	Publications and Presentations	23
Appendix 4:	Working Papers Series	41
Appendix 5:	Knowledge Transfer / Mobilization Activities (11 th NMC)	43
Appendix 6:	Board of Directors	52
Appendix 7:	P and D Committee	54
Appendix 8:	Partners List	55
Appendix 9:	AMC and Domain Funded Research-Projects	59
Appendix 10:	: Student Training, Research and Outputs	68
Appendix 11:	: Budget – Core Funds	77
Appendix 12:	External Funding Secured by AMC and Domains	78
Appendix 13:	: 2008 Annual Policy Research Symposium Agenda and Participants List	82

Introduction

Ce rapport annuel du Centre Métropolis Atlantique fait état des activités entre le 1er avril 2008 et le 31 mars 2009. Il marque également la seconde année dans la phase III du projet Métropolis (2007-2012). Cette deuxième année de la phase III a été très fructueuse pour le CMA et a vu de nombreuse publications et projets nouveaux, ainsi que plusieurs activités visant le transfert de la connaissance.

Créé en janvier 2004, le Centre Métropolis Atlantique présente les perspectives et les préoccupations de la région atlantique relatives aux politiques stratégiques nationales du projet Metropolis et de ses partenaires fédéraux. Le CMA est affilié à quatre autres centres Metropolis (établis en 1996) et il fait partie d'un réseau transnational lié au projet Metropolis international.

Le CMA œuvre dans les deux langues officielles à partir des bureaux de Halifax et de Moncton, favorisant la promotion d'un dialogue entre les communautés de langues et de juridictions diverses. Forts de l'acquis des universités de la région, les cinq groupes ou domaines de recherche régionaux du Centre permettent de rassembler des chercheurs, des organismes communautaires, des fournisseurs de service aux immigrants ainsi que des responsables de l'élaboration des politiques sur le plan municipal, provincial et fédéral (voir les résumés des domaines à l'annexe 1).

Le CMA a pour but principal de contribuer à l'élargissement des connaissances relatives aux politiques et aux tendances dans le secteur de l'immigration, aux changements et aux migrations de la population ainsi qu'aux priorités et aux programmes relatifs à l'immigration sur le plan régional et national. Étant donné que l'immigration devient depuis quelques années une plus grande préoccupation au Canada atlantique et une réalité plus connue, le CMA concentre ses efforts sur l'attraction, l'intégration et la rétention des nouveaux immigrants dans les communautés anglophones et francophones.

Partie I: Objectifs du centre

A. Centre Objectives for 2008- 2009

- Further develop new research domains aligned with the federal policy research priorities of Phase III of the Metropolis Project, which were created in 2007-2008.
- Foster the development of robust research networks which extend throughout Atlantic Canada, across the country and internationally. These networks include community organizations and policy makers in addition to academic researchers, and provide an interface for pursuing the AMC mandate of policy-relevant research addressing immigration, diversity and population migrations.
- Provide infrastructure and support to the AMC-affiliated researchers who
 received grants from AMC core research funding, and who attracted
 additional research funding of \$1,478,663 in the 2008-09 fiscal year in
 order to help them move their projects forward and bring them to fruition.
- Enhance student training and access to educational opportunities in the fields of immigration and diversity studies. This objective is achieved through the AMC Grant Competition, subsidies for students to attend conferences and the Policy Research Symposium, domain-based employment on AMC-funded research projects, the AMC student internship, among other means.
- Streamline and improve knowledge dissemination capabilities through the
 introduction of a Knowledge Transfer grant competition, the expansion of
 the Working Paper Series, a publication distribution project, redesign of
 the website, the introduction of the AMC video series, and maintenance of
 the Electronic Bulletin which contains information on upcoming events,
 including lectures and conferences, research resources and publications,
 and calls for proposals.
- Award \$125,000 to high-quality and innovative research projects addressing the six federal policy research priorities through the fourth annual AMC Grant Competition. The AMC aims to attract new research affiliates from universities across all four Atlantic Provinces through this competition.

B. Overview of Key Center Activities

Cross-Domain Project

The Centre's Cross-Domain Project, *Profiles of Immigrant Communities in Atlantic Canada: The role of networks in attracting, retaining and integrating immigrant men and women in Atlantic Canada*, headed by Nicole Gallant, (formerly of Université de Moncton, currently at IRNS, Université de Québec), continued in 2008-09. The CDI team is currently preparing submissions for a special edition of the Journal of International Migration and Integration (JIMI) and is entering phase III of the project (community surveys).

Atlantic Immigration and Diversity Research Archive (AIDRA)

The Atlantic Immigration and Diversity Research Archive (AIDRA) project, wich was completed during the summer of 2007 with funding from ACOA, Canadian Heritage, the NS Office of Immigration, and the Atlantic Metropolis Centre, was fine-tuned by an IT professional in order to increase ease of use and to move the archive to a new web server. The AIDRA is a searchable online database of Atlantic-based immigration-related research. It is the result of extensive consultation with AMC partners across sectors and research conducted by AMC staff and domain-based research assistants. Users may now access the AIDRA through the Atlantic Metropolis Centre website.

2008-2009 Grants Competition and Peer Review Process

The AMC held a fourth competition, along with a special competition in collaboration with the Atlantic RURAL Centre, to award \$125,000 allocated for grants in the yearly budget. The AMC invited submissions addressing the six federal priority areas of the National Metropolis Project, as well as the overarching theme of the Atlantic Metropolis Centre: Attraction, Retention and Integration of Immigrants to Atlantic Canada. For the list of the 1 Special Strategic, 2 Strategic and 6 Pilot Grants awarded, see Appendix 2 (also available from the AMC website). This year's grants competition was effective in attracting new researchers to affiliate with the AMC, both from the Centre's lead universities, and from regional institutions such as UNB Saint John and Saint Francis Xavier. Both Strategic Grants were awarded to researchers who are new affiliates of the AMC, and one of the two grants jointly awarded with the RURAL Centre went to a new affiliate as well. The grants competition has also provided funding to a large number of graduate students for work on a range of projects (see Appendix 10).

Working Paper Series

Researchers at the AMC produced 14 working papers in 2008-09, a substantial increase over the 4 papers produced in 2007-2008 – a listing is provided in Part III, D.

PART II: Knowledge Transfer/ Mobilization Activities

A. Centre and Domain Activities

AMC 2008-09 Policy Research Symposium

The AMC held its 4th Annual Policy Research Symposium (formerly Strategic Planning Retreat), May 20-21, 2008 at Université de Moncton, Moncton, New Bruswick. The event was attended by approximately 45 researchers, NGO representatives and government partners.

The meeting included workshops and presentations addressing the following topics:

- Justice, Policing and Security: Possible directions for a JPS research agenda within the AMC, and access to justice among immigrants
- Welcoming Communities: Recent Korean Immigration in Moncton, NB

Participating federal partners included Citizenship and Immigration Canada, Canadian Heritage, ACOA, Public Safety Canada, and others. NGO partners included Halifax Immigrant Learning Centre, The Association for Newcomers to Canada of Prince Edward Island, le Centre d'accueil et d'intégation des immigrant.e.s du Moncton métropolitain, Sharing Our Cultures, MAGMA and others.

AMC Open House

The AMC Halifax office held an "Open House" on December 5th, 2008. This event was attended by approximately 40 people, including representatives of NGO partner organizations, government partners, and the lead and affiliated universities. It provided an opportunity for researchers and partners to come together in the AMC office space to meet and network.

AMC Video

In order to increase dissemination possibilities relative to AMC-sponsored events a "Movie/Vidéo" page was added to our website, which links to the AtlanticMetropolis YouTube Channel. With the aid of the appropriate technology and software the AMC was able to share three events which occurred in Halifax with the online community.

AMC 2009-2010 Knowledge Mobilization Strategy

A plan for 2009-10 Knowledge Mobilization Activities was prepared which includes a Knowledge Mobilization Projects Competition, seminars with leading researchers, brown bag sessions, co-sponsored events, and an initiative to explore and strengthen the policy relevance of working papers and policy briefs.

AMC NGO Research Event

On February 17, 2009, Madine VanderPlaat, AMC Director, gave a presentation to the AMC's NGO partners on the topic of "Constructing a Research Question," as part of the AMC's ongoing capacity-building efforts to develop stronger links between researchers and community partners. The event was held at the offices of MISA-HILC and subsequently made available on the Metropolis website and YouTube Channel.

Domain Activities

Each of the five research domains participated in the creation of networks, partnerships and continued collaboration with other researchers. The domain leaders and members contributed to knowledge mobilization through a variety of activities including domain-sponsored visiting speakers, round tables and meetings and participation at regional, national and international conferences. The following is a selection of these activities.

Person	Dr. Vijay Agnew, Professor of Social Sciences, York University
Event Title	Public lecture: "Ethnicity and Identity in the South Asian Diaspora" organized by Evie Tastsoglou & Alexandra
	Dobrowolsky
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	Saint Mary's University, McNally Auditorium, 26 February 2009
Type of Event	Public Lecture and reception

Person	David Chaundy, David Bruce, Robert Annis, Andy Scott,			
	Humphrey Sheehan, Gary Melanson, Heidi Middleton,			
	organized by Ather Akbari and Ted McDonald			
Event Title	"Immigration, migration and population retention in rural areas			
	of Atlantic Canada: a research and policy symposium"			
Audience	Everyone			
Nature of Involvement	Presenters			
Date, Location	UNB Fredericton, February 2009			
Type of Event	Symposium			

Person	Madine VanderPlaat
Event Title	"Constructing a Research Question"
Audience	MISA-HILC
Date, Location	17 Februrary, 2009, MISA-HILC
Type of Event	Presentation

A more detailed and comprehensive list of collaboration and knowledge transfer activities engaged in by the AMC and by domains is available in Appendix 5.

B. Website

During 2008-09, the AMC expanded its capacity to disseminate research findings and various other forms of information on its website. As previously mentioned, video capability was introduced to the site, and a major overhaul was done in early 2009, giving the site a more up-to-date and attractive user interface.

C. Newsletter

In 2008-2009 the AMC continued the practice of distributing electronic bulletins which began in 2007-2008, and published its sixth online newsletter in February 2009.

D. Media Coverage

AMC Researchers and affiliates are engaged in research and policy debates which are of significant interest to the public and are regularly asked to provide commentary in the media. In 2008-09, for example, domain leaders were featured on CBC TV as experts on immigration, and AMC-funded research projects received substantial newspaper coverage.

Part III: Research

A. Research Projects Supported by Centre Funds: Faculty

In June 2008 a Call for Proposals was launched for a special strategic grant of up to \$50,000, strategic grants of up to \$20,000, as well as pilot projects up to a maximum of \$5,000. Based on the recommendations of an external review committee, a total of 9 projects were supported. In addition, a special grant competition in conjunction with the Atlantic RURAL Centre was launched in October 2008, for which a review committee awarded two grants of \$15,000, for which the AMC contributed \$5000 each. For the complete list of awards, see Appendix 2. Funded projects include:

"Transforming Halifax: Connecting immigrants with planning policy and urban design". Principal investigator: Frank Palermo, University/Department: Dalhousie University – School of Architecture and Planning

"Tendances migratoires des communautés de langue officielle en situation minoritaire – Analyse comparative avec les groupes linguistiques majoritaires". Chercheur principal : Éric Forgues, Université/Département : Université de Moncton -- Institut canadien de recherche sur les minorités linguistiques

"Networking, Belonging and Identity: Highly Skilled Immigrants in Halifax and Toronto". Principal Investigator: Evangelia Tastsoglou, University/Department: Saint Mary's University – Sociology & Criminology

For a complete list of AMC and Domain funded research projects see Appendix 9.

B. Additional Research Funding Attracted by AMC Researchers

In 2008-09, researchers affiliated with the AMC secured \$1,478,663 in new external funding. This combined with the \$342,391 in existing funding totals \$1,821,054 in ongoing grant activity. This figure is significantly higher than that reported last year, in large part because a number of major projects were awarded in 2008-2009 while several large multi-year projects came to an end in 2007-2008. A detailed list of externally-funded projects is presented in Appendix 12.

C. Research Outputs

In 2008-09 researchers affiliated with the AMC produced 5 books (with 4 accepted for publication and 2 submitted), 15 book chapters (with 5 accepted for publication and 2 submitted), 14 journal articles (3 accepted for publication and 5 submitted), 14 Working Papers and 1 other publication (with 6 accepted and 4 submitted. A full list of publications is included in Appendix 3. A sample of these publications include:

Tastsoglou, Evangelia (Ed.). 2009. Women, Gender and Diasporic Experiences: Labor, Community and Identity in Greek Migrations. Lexington Books.

L'immigration francophone dans les communautés francophones en situation minoritaire, Chedly Belkhodja (éditeur invité) *Thèmes canadiens* printemps 2008.

Ramos, Howard & Yoko Yoshida. In progress to be submitted to Canadian Journal of Sociology. "From Away But Not Around to Stay: Why Recent Immigrants Leave the Atlantic Provinces".

"Immigrant naturalization and its effect on immigrant labour market performance and public treasury." Ather H. Akbari. <u>The Economics of Citizenship</u> edited by D.J. DeVoretz and P. Belvander. Malmö University, Switzerland: 2008.

D. Working Papers Series

The AMC published 14 working papers in 2008-2009. These include:

- "L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Gravelbourg, Saskatchewan", Jean-Olivier Roy. Document de recherche 10.
- "Discourses of Citizenship and Community: Arab Immigrant Women and their Narratives of Home and Belonging in Halifax, NS", Dalal Abdul-Razzaq.
 Working Paper 11
- "Développer une Stratégie en Matière d'Accueil et d'Intégration en Milieu Minoritaire Francophone et Urbain : l'expérience de quelques structures d'accueil à travers le Canada", Miriam Beaudry et Chedly Belkhodja. Document de recherche 12

Several working papers are forthcoming in 2009. A complete listing of Working Papers published can be found in Appendix 4.

PART IV: Networks and Partnerships

A. Regional and National Partnerships, Collaborations and Networking

The AMC engages in partnership, collaboration and networking activities aimed at developing research capacity, increasing the profile of the centre, leveraging research funds, and extending the research network. These activities, at both the centre and domain level, extend beyond the events listed in Part II, section A. Staff from the Halifax AMC office participated in meetings of the Multicultural Networking Committee hosted by Canadian Heritage. Robert Nathan (AMC Coordinator) attended the ARAISA Conference in Charlottetown in November and the Knowledge Mobilization Conference hosted by the Harris Centre at Memorial University in Saint John's in October. Marguerite Cassin and Robert Nathan met with representatives of federal government departments under the auspices of the Living Leadership program of the Canada School of Public Service to network and develop an understanding of the AMC with diverse federal agencies. All of the domain leaders engage with academic, government and NGO partners locally and nationally on a regular basis, both through the domain committees and in project-based research work.

B. Governance Partners

The AMC provides for direct input into Centre planning and activities to government policy makers, representatives of the lead universities, and NGOs through their memberships on the Centre's Board of Directors, its Program and Dissemination Committee (the central planning committee of the Centre), and its Domain Committees. Membership on the 2008-2009 Board of Directors and P&D Committee can be found in Appendices 6 and 7 respectively. For a complete list of the AMC's government and NGO partners, see Appendix 8. The AMC structure of governance also provides for government and NGO membership on its peer-review Research Evaluation Committee. For more complete information see Appendix 1 (AMC Domains), Appendix 5 (Knowledge Transfer Activities) and Appendix 8 (Partners).

C. International Linkages and Collaborations

AMC Researchers continued to expand networks internationally and strategically build linkages with colleagues working on migration issues in a number of countries in Europe, Africa, Asia and Australasia.

Evie Tastsoglou is involved in team-editing a book on "Gender, Diversity and the Practice of Citizenship: Challenges and Possibilities in a Local / Global World" with Margaret Abraham (Hofstra University, New York), Esther Chow (American University, Washington), and Laura Alipranti (National Centre for Social Research, Athens, Greece). The book is a peer-reviewed publication with Ashgate Publishers, expected in the fall of 2009. It includes selected papers from an international conference that the team organized in Athens, Greece in 2007 for the Research Committee on "Women in Society" (RC 32) of the International Sociological Association. A great deal of that publication focuses on international migration. In addition, Dr. Tastsoglou participated in the last three years in a large EU-based project, FEMIPOL, funded by the European Commission. The project ended last May and E. Tastsoglou was invited to Brussels for the final international workshop where she was the policy commentator. She also gave a paper on the concept of "immigrant integration." A number of European research teams participated from various countries (Germany, U.K, Italy, France, Spain, Portugal, Greece, Cyprus, Poland, Slovenia).

Evie Tastoglou and Alexandra Dobrowolsky also organized events in Halifax with colleagues from overseas. These events include a public lecture by Dr. Xanthi Petrinioti (Department of International and European Studies, Panteion University, Athens; Co-Director of the Mediterranean Migration Observatory), a talk by Dr. Cecil Foster (novelist and Professor of Sociology and Anthropology at Guelph University) and a lecture by Dr. Vijay Agnew (Professor of Social

Sciences, York University. These events were partially sponsored by AMC and Research Domain funds.

Chedly Belkhodja a developpé des reseaux transnationaux de recherche avec des collègues africains, au Burkina Faso (Alkassoum Maiga, Savadogo Ouedraego), en Tunisie (Hamadi Rdissi); en Europe avec Claudio Bolzman, Université de Genève, Belgique Altay Manço, chercheur a l'IFRAM (Liège, Belgique), Maria Luisa, Université de Bilbao, Aline Gohard, Université de Fribourg et en Australie avec Kate Golebiowska de la Charles Darwin University. Il est également impliqué avec Michèle Vatz-Laaroussi de l'Université de Sherbrooke dans le réseau international sur l'immigration en dehors des métropoles. Ce reseau regroupe des chercheurs europeens, africains et autraliens. Enfin, il collabore avec Neils Kalbunde, doctorant à la Humbolt University de Berlin sur un projet de recherche autour des étudiants internationaux.

Christophe Traisnel a travaillé sur Le rôle de l'immigration francophone dans la construction du discours identitaire des mouvements communautaires en Acadie, au Québec et en Wallonie. Cette recherche exploratoire lui a permis de développer un certain nombre de contacts en Belgique, notamment avec la Fondation Wallonne, basée sur le campus de Louvain-la-Neuve, l'Institut Jules Destrée, la revue communautaire wallonne "Toudi", avec certains groupes communautaires de la ville de Bruxelles, ainsi qu'avec des spécialistes des questions d'immigration et d'intégration (CEDEM, Université de Liège).

Pauline Gardiner Barber, Domain Leader, Citizenship & Social, Cultural and Civic Integration, AMC participated in the following international meetings: 1. Migration Policy Research Group, Brussels. (Alexandre Kirchenberger). May 2008. 2. Département Migrations; Centre pour l'égalité des chances et la lutte contre le racisme. Brussells. (Henri Goldman, Severine De Potter, François de Smet). May 2008. 3. Visiting Speaker Series: Talk "Canada's Ideal Immigrants", Department of Anthropology, Department of Anthropology, Gender and Sociology. Otago University, Dunedin, New Zealand. September 2008. 4. Meetings with officials of Department of Internal Affairs, Government of New Zealand. (Citizenship and Ethnic Diversity). September 2008. 5. Visiting Faculty Researcher Appointment, University of Sydney, Department of Sociology & Social Policy. September-November, 2008 (Contact: Christine Inglis). 6. Scalabrini Migration Centre, Manila. December 2008 (Contact Marla Asis). 7. Meetings with members of Health Futures Foundation Inc. December 2008.

The three AMC directors as well as domain leaders Evangelia Tastsoglou and Alexandra Dobrowolsky, in addition to AMC affiliates George Maicher, Fernando Nunes, Jan Sheppard Kutcher, and Bernard Delpeche, attended the 14th International Metropolis Conference in Bonn, Germany, where they networked with colleagues from around the world and made presentations.

For complete information on international linkages and collaborations, please see Appendix 5 (Knowledge Transfer / Mobilization Activities) and Appendix 12 (External Funding Secured by AMC and Domains).

D. Support from Consortium Universities

The Halifax node of the AMC remains in a 987 sq. foot office space in downtown Halifax at the rate of \$16,346.64/year, until the Atrium Building, currently under construction at Saint Mary's University, is completed, at which point office space will be provided free of charge by the university. This cost is currently shared between Saint Mary's University and Dalhousie University. In addition, Saint Mary's pays for fax, telephone and internet as well as providing a photocopier through its lease program. The Moncton node is housed at the Université de Moncton where facilities are provided free of charge.

Each of the partner universities contributes a course release for its domain leaders (\$32,000). In addition, Moncton, Dalhousie and Saint Mary's each contribute \$8,000 in course releases for the Directors. Saint Mary's also provides accounting and administrative services to the AMC as well as technological support. Dalhousie and Moncton provide financial services, research services and office supplies.

In addition, lead and partner institutions provided travel funding for Centre researchers and fellowship funding for graduate student training.

E. Non-Research Project Specific Funding from Federal Departments

Human Resources and Social Development provided \$7000 to the AMC to support student participation at the 11th National Metropolis Conference in Calgary. With this funding, the AMC was able to pay registration, travel and accommodation costs for six students from four universities in three Atlantic provinces.

PART V: Training Activities

A total of 14 students and 1 non-student were provided with training opportunities in 2008-09 through paid employment. The majority of these individuals were employed as research assistants on AMC or externally-funded research projects.

Seventeen student theses thematically linked to Metropolis interests or priorities were produced or underway. A sample of theses completed include:

Student	Level	Domain and University	Title
Serperi Sevgur	MA	Dalhousie University	Networking, Belonging and Identity: Highly Skilled Turkish Immigrants in Halifax and Toronto
Abubakarr Kamara	PhD	Dalhousie University	Developing Initiatives to support the labor market integration of international and immigrant students.
Monia Bergeron	MBA	Saint Mary's	Interprovincial migration of foreign born and native born in Canada
Yulduz Kutlieva	BA	Saint Mary's	The Marketization of Immigration in Canada
Chris Giacomantonio	MA	Dalhousie University	Policing the Commons

A complete list of student research opportunities and theses can be found in Appendix 10.

Part VI: Budget Projections for 2009-2010

Office Staff

The proposed budget for office staff in 2009-2010 is as follows:

Halifax Node: \$82,000

Moncton Node: \$50,000

There are two staff in the Halifax node office. Robert Nathan replaced Lachlan Barber as the Centre Coordinator and Communications Officer in July 2008. Shiva Nourpanah was hired on part-time basis to replace Rebecca Rolfe in March 2009. Franklin Fezeu continues to work on a part-time casual basis as the AMC web master. A student intern, Yulduz Kutlieva was hired from October 2008 until March 2009 to work on special projects.

In the Moncton node administrative duties were shared by two part-time employees: Tania Duclos and Eric Thomas, both of whom were replaced in fall 2008. The current part-time employees of the Moncton node are Mathieu Lanteigne and Valérie Roy.

Research

The 2009-2010 budget for research grants will be distributed as follows:

New Strategic Grant	1 X \$50,000 = \$50,000
Strategic Grants	3 X \$20,000 = \$60,000
Pilot Projects	6 X \$5,000 = \$30,000
Domain Seed	$5 \times \$4,000 = \$20,000$
	Total $= $160,000$

The projected budget for 2009-2010 is attached as Appendix 11.

APPENDIX 1: RESEARCH DOMAINS

GENDER, MIGRATION AND DIVERSITY/ IMMIGRANT WOMEN

(Addressing the Family, Children and Youth priority)

Dr. Alexandra Dobrowolsky, Dept. of Political Science, Saint Mary's University Dr. Evie Tastsoglou, Dept. of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University

Domain Researchers / Members:

Sharon Morgan Beckford (English Department, Saint Mary's University)

Elizabeth Beaton (Community Studies, Cape Breton University)

Olivia Bornik (Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association)

Florencia Berakha (Pier 21, Newcomers Program)

Michele Byers (Department of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Susan Brigham (Faculty of Education, Mount Saint Vincent University)

Catherine Bryan (Ph.D student, Dalhousie University)

Nanok Cha (MA Women's Studies; Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association)

Lisa Chilton (History, UPEI)

Sinziana Chira (Ph.D student Dalhousie University)

Linda Christiansen-Ruffman (Department of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Barbara Cottrell (Department of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Kit Dobson (Killam Doctoral Fellow - English, Dalhousie University)

Felicia Eghan (Family Studies and Gerontology, MSVU)

Liesl Gambold (Sociology and Anthropology, Dalhousie University)

Lan Gien (Nursing, Memorial University)

Peruvemba Jaya (Department of Communication, University of Ottawa)

Val Marie Johnson (Department of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Sylvia Kasparian (Etudes Françaises, Université de Moncton)

Jean-Cristophe Kasende (French Department, Dalhousie University)

Amy Kebe (Universite Sainte Anne)

Edna Keeble (Department of Political Science, Saint Mary's University)

Kamel Khiari (sciences sociales, Université de Moncton)

Jane Ku (Department of Women's Studies, University of Windsor)

Jan Kutcher (Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association)

Dianne Looker (Sociology/Anthropology, MSVU)

Scott Lynch (Economics, Memorial University)

Alison Mathie (Research and Publications, St. Francis Xavier University)

Mr. Sonny Maxroxas (International Development Studies, Saint Mary's University)

Brigitte Neumann (Nova Scotia Advisory Council on the Status of Women)

Fernando Nunes (Mount Saint Vincent University)

Mythili Rajiva (Department of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Lori Root (MA Women's Studies)

Seperi Sevgur (Graduate Student, IDS, Dalhousie University)

Marjorie Stone (English/Gender Studies, Dalhousie University)

Susan Tirone (School of Health & Human Performance, Dalhousie University)

AKM Ahsan Ullah (History, SMU)

Madine Vanderplaat (Department of Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Gabriella Varhelyi, (Clinical Vision Science Program, Dalhousie University)

Emma Varley (Post-Doctoral Fellow - Bioethics,

Ingrid Waldron (School of Occupational Therapy, Faculty of Health Professions, Dalhousie University)

Susan Walsh (Faculty of Education, Mount Saint Vincent)

Hong Wang (Faculty of Education, Mount Saint Vincent University)

Maria José Yax Fraser (MA Women's Studies; Independent Researcher)

Governmental / Community Partners:

SSHRC, CIC, Canadian Heritage, Status of Women Canada, Nova Scotia Advisory Council on the Status of Women, Nova Scotia Department of Education; Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association (MISA), Multicultural Association of Nova Scotia (MANS), Maritime Centre of Excellence for Women's Health., Nova Scotia Office of Immigration, Immigrant Women's Group, YMCA, Pier 21 Newcomers Program, Canadian Race Relations Foundation, Atlantic Population Table, Portuguese-Canadian National Congress

Research Domain Objectives:

The Gender, Migration and Diversity/ Immigrant Women research domain provides a unique entry point to identify issues of particular relevance to immigrant women that might otherwise be overlooked. The objective is to provide a regional and national focus for gender-based analysis of immigration and diversity.

ECONOMIC AND LABOUR MARKET INTEGRATION

Dr. Ather H. Akbari, Department of Economics, Saint Mary's University Dr. Ted McDonald, Department of Economics, University of NB (Fredericton)

Domain Researchers / Members:

Nabiha Atallah (MISA)

Godfrey Baldacchino (UPEI)

Nellie Burke (Govt of NL)

David Chaundy (APEC)

Lisa Chilton (History, UPEI)

Sonya Corbin Dwyer, (Psychology, Memorial University Newfoundland)

Vernon Curran (Faculty of Medicine, Memorial University)

Lynda L. Harling-Stalker (Sociology and Anthropology - St. Francis Xavier)

Peruvemba Jaya (Department of Communication, University of Ottawa)

Amy Kebe (Universite Sainte Anne)

Kamel Khiari (Sciences sociales, Université de Moncton)

Peter Li (USask)

John Phyne (Sociology and Anthropology, St. Francis Xavier)

William Radford (Director - Extension, St. Francis Xavier)

Wimal Rankaduwa (UPEI)

Bev Woznow (Govt of NB).

AKM Ahsan Ullah (History, SMU)

Monika Stelzl (Psychology St. Thomas University)

Ingrid Waldron (School of Occupational Therapy, Faculty of Health Professions, Dalhousie University)

Governmental / Community Partners:

CIC, Canadian Heritage, SSHRC, HRSDC, Government of Nova Scotia, Halifax Regional Municipality, Atlantic Provinces Economic Council, Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada, Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency, MISA-HILC, Nova Knowledge, Statistics Canada; Rural Secretariat; Government of New Brunswick; Government of Prince Edward Island; Government of Newfoundland and Labrador, Brandon University, Manitoba, UNB-Fredericton, Mount Allison University,

Research Domain Objectives:

The *Economic and Labour Market Integration* research domain investigates the economic effects of immigration, economic performance of immigrants and the role of socioeconomic factors in attracting and retaining immigrants in smaller and rural communities.

COLLECTIVITES D'ACCUEIL ET LEUR ROLE DANS L'ATTRAIT, L'INTEGRATION ET LA RETENTION DES NOUVEAUX ARRIVANTS ET DES MEMBRES DES MINORITES

Dr. Sylvia Kasparian, Etudes Françaises, Université de Moncton

Dr. Cristophe Traisnel, ICRML, Université de Moncton

Elizabeth Beaton: Associate Professor - Community Studies, Cape Breton University

Godfrey Baldacchino: Associate Professor - Canada Research Chair in Island Studies, UPEI

Chedly Belkhodja, professeur,-Sciences politiques Université de Moncton

Aicha Benimmas: Professeur adjointe - Enseignement au secondaire et des ressources humaines,

Université de Moncton

Susan M. Brigham: Assistant Professor - Education, MSVU Ottilia Chareka: Assistant Professor - Education, St. Francis Xavier

Lisa Chilton: Associate Professor - History, UPEI

Vernon Curran: Associate Professor - Faculty of Medicine, Memorial University

Bernard Delpêche: Professeur agrégé - Département des Langues et Littératures, Université Acadia **Jean-Jacques Doucet**: Professeur adjoint - Enseignement au secondaire et des ressources humaines,

Université de Moncton

Felicia Rosaline Eghan: Assistant Professor - Family Studies and Gerontology, MSVU

David J. Flint: Assistant Professor - Sociology and Criminology, SMU

Louise Fontaine: Professeure agrégé - Sciences administratives, Université Sainte-Anne

Kristen Good: Assistant Professor - Political Science, DAL

Lan Gien: Professor - Nursing, Memorial University

Jill Grant: Professor - School of Planning, Dalhousie University

Scarlet Hann: Provincial Coordinator Physician Recruitment - NLHBA with MUN

Jeff Karabanow: Associate Professor - Social Work, DAL

Sylvia Kasparian: Professeur agrégé - Etudes Francaises, Université de Moncton

Gino LeBlanc: chercheur associé - Institut canadien de recherche en politiques et administration

publiques, U de Moncton

Greg Marquis: Professor - History and Politics, UNB Saint John

Alison Mathie: Manager - Research and Publications, St. Francis Xavier University

Fernando Nunes: Assistant Professor - Child and Youth Study, MSVU **Frank Palermo**: Professor - Archetecture and Engineering, DAL

John Phyne: Full Professor - Sociology and Anthropology, St. Francis Xavier

William Radford: Director - Extension, St. Francis Xavier

Monika Stelzl: Assistant Professor - Psychology, St. Thomas University

Susan Tirone: Associate Professor - Health and Human Performance, Dalhousie University

Ingrid Waldron: Assistant Professor - School of Occupational Therapy, Faculty of Health Professions,

DAL

Hong Wang: Assistant professor - Faculty of Education, Mount Saint Vincent University **Gabriella Varhelyi**: Adjunct Professor - Clinical Vision Science Program, Dalhousie University

Emma Varley: Killam Post-Doctoral Fellow - Bioethics, Dalhousie University

Research Domain Objectives:

La capacité d'un pays à recevoir et à intégrer les immigrants, les réfugiés et les membres de minorités repose sur de nombreux facteurs d'ordre social, dont plusieurs peuvent être grandement influencés par les politiques gouvernementales. Cette priorité de recherche permettra de déterminer quels instruments de politique publique sont les plus propices à contribuer à la capacité du Canada, de ses villes et de ses collectivités à recevoir et à intégrer avec succès les immigrants, les réfugiés et les membres de minorités. Elle présentera également l'occasion d'identifier, selon des méthodes empiriques, des pratiques exemplaires qui pourront être adaptées de sorte à être mises en œuvre dans d'autres contextes.

CITIZENSHIP AND SOCIAL, CULTURAL AND CIVIC INTEGRATION / CITOYENNETE ET INTEGRATION SOCIALE, CULTURELLE ET CIVIQUE

Dr. Pauline Gardiner Barber, Sociology and Social Anthropology, Dalhousie University.

Domain Researchers / Members:

Bruce Barber (Graduate Studies, NSCAD U)

Elizabeth Beaton, (Community Studies, Cape Breton University)

Chedly Belkhodja, (département de science politique à l'Université de Moncton au Nouveau-Brunswick)

Aicha Benimmas (Enseignement au secondaire et des ressources humaines, Université de Moncton)

Jimmy Bourque, (DESRH, Université de Moncton)

David Black, (Political Science and IDS Departments, Dalhousie University)

Susan M Brigham (Education, MSVU)

Lisa Chilton (History, UPEI)

Don Clairmont (Sociology & Anthropology, Dalhousie University)

Sonya Corbin Dwyer, (Psychology, Memorial University Newfoundland)

Vernon Curran (Faculty of Medicine, Memorial University)

Carrie Dawson (English and Canadian Studies, Dalhousie University)

Bernard Delpêche, (Département des Langues et Littératures, Université Acadia)

Kit Dobson (English, Dalhousie University)

Felicia Rosaline Eghan (Family Studies and Gerontology, MSVU)

John David Flint (Sociology & Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Louise Fontaine, (Sciences administratives, Université Sainte-Anne)

Lan Gien (Nursing, Memorial University)

Kirsten Good (Political Science, Dalhousie University)

Christine Johnson (Human Nutrition, St. Francis Xavier University)

Val Marie Johnson (Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University)

Jeff Karabanow (Social Work, Dalhousie University)

Jean-Christophe Kasende, (Assistant Professor - French Department, Dalhousie University)

Sylvia Kasparian, (Études Françaises Université de Moncton)

Amy Kebe (Etudes Anglaises, Universite Sainte-Anne)

Kamel Khiari (Sciences sociales, Université de Moncton)

Belinda Leach (Department of Sociology & Anthropology, University of Guelph)

Gino LeBlanc (Institut canadien de recherché en politiques et administration publiques, Université de Moncton)

Greg Marquis (History and Politics, UNB Saint John)

Alison Mathie (Research and Publications, St. Francis Xavier University)

Fernando Nunes (Child and Youth Study, MSVU)

Frank Palermo (Architecture and Engineering, Dalhousie University)

John Phyne (Sociology and Anthropology, St. Francis Xavier)

Lloydetta Quaicoe (PhD Student - MUN)/ Sharing Our Cultures (NGO)

Howard Ramos (Department of Sociology and Social Anthropology, Dalhousie University)

Karen Fog Olwig (Department of Anthropology, University of Copenhagen, Denmark)

William Radford (Director - Extension, St. Francis Xavier)

Monika Stelzl (Psychology, St. Thomas University)

Marjorie Stone (English & Gender Studies, Dalhousie University)

Jean François Thibault (Science politique, Université de Moncton)

Susan Tirone (English and Canadian Studies, Dalhousie University)

Gabriella Varhelyi (Clinical Vision Science Program, Dalhousie University)

Emma Varley (Bioethics, Dalhousie University)

Governmental / Community Partners:

Citizenship and Immigration Canada; Nova Scotia Agricultural College; Nova Scotia Law Reform Commission; Halifax Refugee Clinic; Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association; Halifax Immigrant Learning Centre.

Research Domain Objectives:

Canada's immigration program, like its multicultural approach to inclusion, is designed to bring benefits to Canadian society as well as an offer of a better life to immigrants, refugees, and their

immediate families. It is not only the Canadian economy that feels the effects of immigration. Accordingly, this domain will look at the social and cultural effects of immigration and diversity on Canada and will determine the extent to which there are risks to societal well-being, to full participation of the members of these groups as citizens, and to the cohesion of Canadian society overall and in its regions.

JUSTICE, POLICING AND SECURITY

Dr. Jean-François Thibault, Université de Moncton Dr. Marguerite Cassin (Acting), Dalhousie University

Domain Researchers / Members:

Marguerite Cassin, (Public Admininistration, Dalhousie University); Lee Cohen (Halifax Refugee Clinic); Mirsada Karabegovic (Dalhousie Law School); Don Clairmont (Sociology and Anthropology, Dalhousie University); Val Marie Johnson (Sociology and Criminology, Saint Mary's University); Kamel Khiari (Sciences sociales, Université de Moncton); Jean Francois Thibault (Science politique, Université de Moncton); Marjorie Stone (English/Gender Studies, Dalhousie University); Jimmy Bourque (DESRH, Université de Moncton); Prof.Constance Macintosh (Dalhousie Law School); Paul McKenna, (Interdisciplinary Ph.D. Student, Dalhousie University)

Governmental / Community Partners:

RCMP (Halifax); Public Safety Canada; Department of Justice Canada; Nova Scotia Law Reform Commission; NS Department of Justice; Halifax Regional Police

Research Domain Objectives:

Concerns over social cohesion and national security, especially the contemporary preoccupation with terrorism, have raised the public profile of debate surrounding how Canada and its justice and security systems can ensure a balanced and fair approach to an increasingly diverse population - to maintain order, public safety and national security while preserving civil liberties and the Canadian multicultural model of an open, diverse society.

APPENDIX 2: GRANT COMPETITION

Atlantic Metropolis Centre 2008-2009 Research Grant Competition Results

The AMC is pleased to congratulate the successful applicants of the Centre's fourth annual grants competition.

Le Centre Métropolis Atlantique tient à féliciter tous les chercheurs subventionnés dans le cadre du quatrième programme de subventions de recherche.

Special Strategic Grants / Subventions Stratégiques Spéciales

"Transforming Halifax: Connecting immigrants with planning policy and urban design"

Principal investigator: Frank Palermo

University/Department: Dalhousie University – School of Architecture and

Planning

Strategic Grants / Subventions Stratégiques

"Tendances migratoires des communautés de langue officielle en situation minoritaire – Analyse comparative avec les groupes linguistiques majoritaires" Chercheur principal : Éric Forgues

Université/Département : Université de Moncton -- Institut canadien de recherche sur les minorités linguistiques

"The Immigrant Experience in Saint John: A look at how different cultures have adapted to a mid-sized Maritime city"

Principal investigator: Greg Marquis

University/Department: University of New Brunswick -- History

Pilot Projects / Projets Pilotes

"Developing initiatives to support the labor market integration of international students in Atlantic Canada"

Principal Investigator: Liesl Gambold Miller University/Department: Dalhousie University –

"Networking, Belonging and Identity: Highly Skilled Immigrants in Halifax and Toronto" Principal Investigator: Evangelia Tastsoglou University/Department: Saint Mary's University – Sociology & Criminology

"Atlantic Immigrant Writers Project"
Principal Investigator: Marjorie Stone

University/Department: Dalhousie University – English

"Improving Access to Municipal Services by New Immigrants: An Impact Analysis

of the Halifax Regional Municipality Immigration Action Plan"

Principal Investigator: Jill Grant

University/Department: Dalhousie University – School of Planning

"The Impact of the HOST Program on Immigrant Retention on Prince Edward Island"

Principal Investigator: Godfrey Baldacchino

University/Department: University of Prince Edward Island – Island Studies

"Ethnographic Understandings of the Rural Immigrant Mobility Decision-Making Process"

Principal Investigator: Pauline Gardiner Barber

University/Department: Dalhousie University – Sociology & Social Anthropology

Joint AMC/Atlantic RURAL Centre Grants

"Rural Out-Migration, Labour Markets and Community Support Structures in the Strait Area of Nova Scotia"

Principal Investigator: John Phyne

University/Department: Saint Francis Xavier -- Sociology

"A Better Place to Be? Rural Immigrant Men and Health Care Outcomes in Atlantic Canada"

Principal Investigator: Blye Frank

University/Department: Dalhousie University -- Bioethics

APPENDIX 3: PUBLICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

2008-09 **PUBLICATIONS**

POLICY PRIORITY		Citizenship and Social, Cultural and Civic	Economic and Labour Market Integration	Family, Children and Youth	Housing and Neigbourhoods	Justice, Policing and Security	Welcoming Communities
	В	OKS					
Submitted	Refereed		2				
	Non-refereed						
Accepted for	Refereed	1		3			
Publication	Non-refereed						
Published	Refereed			3			2
	Non-refereed						
	BOOK (HAPTE	RS				
Submitted	Refereed						2
	Non-refereed						
Accepted for	Refereed			5			
Publication	Non-refereed						
Published	Refereed	4	1	10			
	Non-refereed						
	ARTICLES in RES	SEARCI	JOUF	NALS			
Submitted	Refereed	3	2				
	Non-refereed						
Accepted for	Refereed	1		1			1
Publication	Non-refereed						
Published	Refereed	5	1	4			4
	Non-refereed						
	OTHER PL	JBLICA [®]	TIONS				
Submitted	Refereed		1				3
	Non-refereed						
Accepted for	Refereed		5				1
Publication	Non-refereed						
Published	Refereed						1
	Non-refereed						

CITIZENSHIP AND SOCIAL, CULTURAL AND CIVIC INTEGRATION CITOYENNETÉ ET INTÉGRATION SOCIALE, CULTURELLE ET CIVIQUE

Books:

Stanbridge, Karen and Howard Ramos. (expected publication 2011). Politics Seen Differently: A Brief Introduction to Political Sociology. Don Mills, On: Oxford University Press.

Book Chapters:

D. Black and L. Swatuk, "Human security debates in North America." In H.G. Brauch et al. (eds.). <u>Facing Global Environmental Change: Environment, Human, Energy, Food, Health, and Water Security Concepts</u> (Springer-Verlag, 2008).

Ron, James; Howard Ramos and Kathleen Rodgers. 2009 (reprint). "What Shapes the West's Human Rights Focus?" Pp. 345-352 in The Social Movements Reader: Cases and Concepts 2nd ed., Jeff Goodwin and James M. Jasper eds. Malden, MA: Wiley-Blackwell.

Ramos, Howard and Kevin Gosine. 2008 (reprint). "The Rocket": Newspaper Coverage of the Death of a Quebec Cultural Icon, A Canadian Hockey Player." Pp. 416-434 in Nation and Society: Readings in Post-Confederation Canadian History volume 2, Margaret Conrad and Alvin Finkel, eds. Toronto: Pearson Education Canada.

Ramos, Howard. 2008. "Aboriginal Protest." Pp 55-70 a special invited chapter in Social Movements by Suzanne Staggenborg. Don Mills, On: Oxford University Press.

Articles in Research Journals

Black, David. "The Ambiguities of Development: Implications for 'Development Through Sport'." In Sport in Society, forthcoming, 2009.

Black, David. "Does Politics Stop at the Water's Edge? Party and Partisanship in Canadian Foreign Policy." Co-authored with Brian Bow. <u>International Journal</u>, Winter 2008/9, 7-27.

Black, David. "Darfur's Challenge to International Society." Co-authored with Paul D. Williams. In <u>Behind the Headlines</u>, Vol. 65, No. 6, 2008.

Black, David. "Dreaming Big: The Pursuit of Second Order Games a Strategic Response to Globalisation." In <u>Sport in Society</u>, Vol. 11, No. 4, 2008, 467-479.

Ramos, Howard and Yoko Yoshida. In progress to be submitted to Canadian Journal of Sociology. "From Away But Not Around to Stay: Why Recent Immigrants Leave the Atlantic Provinces."

Hafner-Burton, Emilie M, James Ron and Howard Ramos. In progress to be submitted to International Organization. "Boomerangs for All? Human Rights,

the Media, and World Regions"

VanderPlatt, Madine; Howard Ramos and Yoko Yoshida. In progress to be submitted. "What are the Contributions of Sponsored Parents and Grandparents in Canada?" Canadian Review of Sociology and Anthropology.

Ramos, Howard. 2008. "Opportunity for Whom?: Political Opportunity and Critical Events in Canadian Aboriginal Mobilization, 1951-2000." Social Force 87(2):795-824.

Ramos, Howard. 2008. "Review of Dominique Clement. Canada's Rights Revolution: Social Movements and Change, 1937-82." Canadian Journal of Sociology.

COLLECTIVITÉS D'ACCUEIL ET LEUR RÔLE DANS L'ATTRAIT, L'INTÉGRATION ET LA RÉTENTION DES NOUVEAUX ARRIVANTS ET DES MEMBRES DES MINORITÉS

Livres:

L'immigration francophone dans les communautés francophones en situation minoritaire, Chedly Belkhodja (éditeur invité) *Thèmes canadiens* printemps 2008.

Bouchamma Y. et Benimmas A. (Eds.). (sous presse) L'immigration, un enjeu pour l'éducation. Numéro thématique pour *la Revue de l'Université de Moncton*, no 39-1.

Chapitres de livre:

- Christophe Traisnel avec Chedly Belkhodja. John Biles (dir.). En préparation. (2009) « Intégration et inclusion à l'échelle du Canada : le cas du Nouveau-Brunswick ».
- . Traisnel C. « Enjeux linguistiques locaux, représentation politique et interférences identitaires dans la définition d'une francophonie multiscalaire au Canada »., éd. Prise de Parole.

Articles dans une revue spécialisée:

Traisnel C. « L'Acadie de la diversité chez le militant acadien «d'ici» et l'immigrant francophone «venu d'ailleurs» : contradictions et convergences dans les représentations d'«une» identité commune », (en collab. avec Isabelle Violette), Revue Francophonies d'Amérique. (Revu et accepté).

Traisnel C. (2008). « Combining Local Distinctiveness and Cultural Diversity: Immigration and Cultural Diversity in the Identity Discourse of Nationalisms of Protest in Quebec, Acadia and Wallonia », Canadian Issues, Spring, p. 34-37.

Traisnel C. (2008). « Conjuguer particularisme local et diversité culturelle : l'immigrant et la diversité culturelle dans les discours identitaires des nationalismes de contestation au Québec, en Acadie et en Wallonie », *Thèmes canadiens*, Printemps, p. 38-42.

Kasparian S. (2008), avec Joceline Chabot, et Christine Thériault « A shared memory? The social demand for the recognition of the Armenian genocide by the Armenian community of Quebec (1965-1998)", *The Journal of the Society for Armenian Studies*, vol. 17, nov.2008, pp.19-41

Kasparian S. (2008). « Pour un modèle nouveau d'accueil et d'intégration des immigrants francophones en milieu minoritaire : le Centre d'accueil et l'intégration des immigrants du Moncton Métropolitain », *Thèmes canadiens*, Printemps, p. 104-108.

Kasparian S. (2008). «New Model for receiving and integrating francophone immigrants into minority communities: The Centre d'accueil et d'intégration des immigrants du Moncton Métropolitain», *Canadian Issues*, Spring, p. 94-97

Série des documents de recherche du CMA :

Développer une Stratégie en Matière d'Accueil et d'Intégration en Milieu Minoritaire Francophone et Urbain : l'expérience de quelques structures d'accueil à travers le Canada. Myriam Beaudry et Chedly Belkhodja, Université de Moncton, Working Paper 14, 2008.

L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Clare, Nouvelle-Écosse. Jean-Olivier Roy, Université de Moncton (sous la supervision de Chedly Belkhodja et Nicole Gallant)

L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Gravelbourg, Saskatchewan.Jean-Olivier Roy, Université de Moncton (sous la supervision de Chedly Belkhodja et Nicole Gallant)

L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Brooks, Alberta. Jean-Olivier Roy, Université de Moncton (sous la supervision de Chedly Belkhodja et Nicole Gallant)

Les défis linguistiques des immigrants francophones en milieu minoritaire Isabelle Violette et Annette Boudreau, Université de Moncton, sous presse, 2008.

ECONOMIC AND LABOUR MARKET INTEGRATION

Books

<u>Gender Wage Gap in New Brunswick</u> Nova Science Publishers (New York) submitted for review.

Socioeconomic and demographic profiles of immigrants in six Atlantic Canadian communities McGill-Queen's Press, submitted for review.

Book Chapters:

"Immigrant naturalization and its effect on immigrant labour market performance and public treasury." Ather H. Akbari. <u>The Economics of Citizenship</u> edited by D.J. DeVoretz and P. Belvander (Malmö University, Switzerland

Articles in Research Journals:

Review article by Ather H. Akbari in the guest edited volume of JIMI. Published (Fall 2008, Vol 9, No. 4).

Xu, Mengxuan and James Ted McDonald (2008) 'The mental health of immigrants to Canada: the importance of ethnic networks', submitted to Canadian Public Policy.

J.T. McDonald and J. Neily 'Immigration, Ethnicity and Cancer in Immigrant and non-Immigrant Women'. Submitted to Journal of immigrant and minority health.

Reports/Other:

Journal of International Migration and Integration Fall 2008, Vol 9, No. 4 (Guest edited by Ather H. Akbari)

Socioeconomic and demographic profiles of immigrants in Atlantic Canada – Phase II, focus on vibrant communities (Finished, to be published by CIC).

Immigrant Entrepreneurs in Nova Scotia. AMC working paper by Najma Sharif.

World Migration in the age of globalization. AMC working paper by Peter Li. APEC released a report card in July 2008 "Nominee Program Boosts Atlantic Immigration" led by David Chaundy.

J.T. McDonald and M. Rebecca Valenzuela (2009) 'The Impact of Skill Mismatch among Migrants on Remittance Behavior', SEDAP research paper #242

GENDER, MIGRATION AND DIVERSITY / IMMIGRANT WOMEN (ADDRESSING THE FAMILY, CHILDREN AND YOUTH PRIORITY)

Books:

Abraham, Margaret, Esther Chow, Laura Maratou-Alipranti and Evangelia Tastsoglou (alphabetical order), eds., *The Contours of Citizenship in a Local / Global World*, volume based on the RC 32/ ISA conference that the co-editors co-organized in Athens in May-June 2007 (Chapters have all been reviewed by co-editors; based on peer-reviewed proposal and articles, a contract has been signed with Ashgate Publishers; manuscript has just been peer-reviewed and accepted based on completion of revisions). Expected publication date: Fall 2009).

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra (Ed.). 2009. *Women and Public Policy in Canada: Neoliberalism and After?* Toronto: Oxford University Press.

Christiansen-Ruffman. Paola Melchiori and Berit As 2008. *Ritratti di Donne dal Mondo – Esplorazioni femministe di nuovi paradigmi nella vita, nella conoscenze e nella politica.* (Italian translation of the 2006 book, *Portraits of Women's Wisdom: Feminists Exploring New Paradigms in Life, Knowledge and Politics* by Linda Christiansen-Ruffman, Paola Melchiori and Berit Ås. Treviso: International Feminist University.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia and Peruvemba Jaya (Eds.) *Immigrant Women in Atlantic Canada: Feminist Perspectives*. Toronto: CSP / Women's Press (forthcoming 2009).

Tastsoglou, Evangelia (Ed.). 2009. Women, Gender and Diasporic Experiences: Labor, Community and Identity in Greek Migrations. Lexington Books.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia, Guest-Editor. "The Experiences of the Second Generation and Beyond". Special Issue of *Canadian Ethnic Studies*. Forthcoming, Fall 2009.

Book Chapters:

Cottrell, Barbara and VanderPlaat, Madine (forthcoming). "Parenting in Immigrant Communities." In Evangelia Tastsoblou and Jaya Peruvemba eds. *Immigrant Women in Atlantic Canada: Feminist Perspectives.* Toronto: CSP/Women's Press.

B. Cottrell, E. Tastsoglou, C. C. Moncayo, "The Context and Dynamics of Violence in Immigrant Families in Halifax" in *Women and Social Justice*, Vijay Agnew (editor), University of Toronto Press (forthcoming, 2009).

Christiansen-Ruffman, Linda. 2008. "Nascent, Incipient, Embryonic and Ceremonial Women's Studies." In Wendy Robins, Meg Luxton, Margrit Eichler and Francine Decarries eds. *Minds of Our Own: Inventing Feminist Scholarship and Women's Studies in Canada and Québec, 1966-76.* Waterloo: Wilfrid Laurier University Press.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. 2009. "Women and Politics in Canada: All Image, No Substance." In Joyce Gelb and Marian Palley eds. *Women and Politics Around the World: A Comparative History and Survey*. ABC-CLIO.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. 2009. "Neoliberalism and After?" In A. Dobrowolsky, Women and Public Policy in Canada: Neoliberalism and After? (Toronto: Oxford University Press).

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. 2009. "Charter Champions? Equality Backsliding the Charter and the Courts." In A. Dobrowolsky, *Women and Public Policy in Canada: Neoliberalism and After?* (Toronto: Oxford University Press)

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. 2008. "Émergence d'un referential global sous tension: l'investissement social au Canada." In Olivier Giraud et Philippe Warin (eds), *Politiques publiques et democratie* (Paris: Editions la decouverte) [co-authored with Pascale Dufour, Denis Saint-Martin, Jane Jenson and Deena White].

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra and Ruth Lister. 2008. "Social Investment: The Discourse and the Dimensions of Change." In Martin Powell (ed.) *Modernising the Welfare State: The Blair Legacy*. Bristol: The Policy Press.

Kebe, Amy. 2008. "Rewriting Gender and the Nation in Makeda Silvera's Silenced and The Heart Does Not Bend." In Emily Williams eds. Beyond the Canebrakes: West Indian Women Writers in Canada. Trenton, NJ: Africa World Press, 279-303.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia. 2009. "The Temptations of New Surroundings: Family, State, and Transnational Gender Politics in the Movement of Greek Domestic Workers in Canada in the 1950s and 1960s," in E. Tastsoglou (editor) Women, Gender and Diasporic Lives: Labor, Community and Identity in Greek Migrations, Lexington Books, pp. 81-114.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia. 2009. "En/Gendering the Greek Diaspora: Theoretical and Historical Considerations" book chapter in E. Tastsoglou (editor) *Women, Gender and Diasporic Lives: Labor, Community and Identity in Greek Migrations*, Lexington Books, pp. 1-28.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia. "Less-Preferred Workers and Citizens in the Making: The Case of Greek Domestic Women in Canada in the 1950s and 1960s", book chapter in *The Contours of Citizenship in a Local / Global World* (Ashgate, Fall 2009), edited by Margaret Abraham, Esther Chow, Laura Maratou-Alipranti and Evangelia Tastsoglou (alphabetical order, forthcoming 2009).

Tirone, Susan. (forthcoming). Multiculturalism and leisure policy: Enhancing the delivery of leisure services and supports for immigrants and minority Canadians. In Arai, Reid and Mair (Eds). Social Justice and Leisure, University of Calgary Press.

Tirone, S. & Sweatman, M. (forthcoming). "Gender, leisure and immigrants in Atlantic Canada." In E. Tastsoglou and Jaya Perumvba eds *Immigrant Women in Atlantic Canada: Feminist Perspectives.* Toronto: CSPI / Women's Press.

VanderPlaat, Madine and Legault, Claudette. 2008. "NGO-University Partnerships: Practicing What We Preach." In Andy Williamson and Ruth De Souza (eds.) Researching With Communities: Grounded Perspectives on Engaging Communities in Research. London& Auckland: Muddycreekpress.

Articles in Research Journals:

Byers, Michele and Evangelia Tastsoglou. "Negotiating Ethno-Cultural Identity: The Experience of Greek and Jewish Youth in Halifax." *Canadian Ethnic Studies,* Special Issue on *the Experiences of the Second Generation,* edited by E. Tastsoglou (forthcoming, Fall, 2009). Authors listed in alphabetical order.

Christiansen-Ruffman, Linda. 2008. Extended Review of Marcia Texler Segal and Vasilikie Demos (eds.) *Gender Realities: Local and Global, Volume 9, Advances in Gender Research* in *International Sociology Review of Books* 23 (5, September, 2008):722-729.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. 2008. "Interrogating 'invisibilization' and 'instrumentalization': Women and Current Citizenship Trends in Canada." *Citizenship Studies* 12:4, 465-79.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. 2008. Book Review of Keith Banting et al, *The Art of the State III: Belonging? Diversity, Recognition and Shared Citizenship.*, in *International Migration and Integration Journal* 9: 115-116.

Kenedy, R., Reis D., & F. Nunes (2008). "Thinking Civically": An Exploration of Civic Identity and Participation Among Portuguese Youth in Ontario and Québec. Manuscript accepted for publication.

Livingston, L.A., Tirone, S.C., Miller, A.J., & Smith, E.L. (2008). "Participation in coaching by Canadian immigrants: Individual accommodations and sport system receptivity." *International Journal of Sports Science & Coaching, 3,* 403-415.

Nunes, F. (Spring 2008). Striking a balance in Canada's diversity dialogue. *Canadian Diversity* 6(2), 121-125.

Reports/Other:

M. Byers, E. Tastsoglou (alphabetical order), "On the Edges of the Mosaic", in CANADIAN DIVERSITY / DIVERSITE CANADIENNE, Volume 6: 2, Spring 2008, pp. 90-93.

Christiansen-Ruffman, Linda. "A Brief to the Nova Scotian Law Amendments Committee on Bill 179, the Halifax Regional Municipality Charter," November 18, 2008.

A. Dobrowolsky, E. Tastsoglou. "Women, Gender and Networks", in OUR DIVERSE CITIES, Number 5, Spring 2008, pp. 80-83 (listing of authors in alphabetical order).

- Livingston, L. Tirone, Susan, Smith, E. L., & Miller, A. J. (2008). "They just don't know where to go, what to do": Connecting Newcomers to Sports and Coaching Opportunities in Atlantic Canada. *Our Diverse Cities. Atlantic Region, Number 5*, Spring 2008, 121-125.
- Nunes, F. (February 2008). Report to the University of Toronto Provost's Committee (Report of a community consultation process on Portuguese-Canadian academic underachievement, conducted in November and December 2007, which results were presented at a meeting of the Provost's Committee on December 16, 2007). Halifax NS: Author
- Nunes, F. *Uncovering Barriers and Support Mechanisms in the Education of Portuguese-Canadian Youth,* funded by Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council.
- Nunes, F. Researching the Educational and Economic Status of the Portuguese-Canadian Community, New Scholar's internal grant, Mount Saint Vincent University.
- Nunes, F., R. Kenedy, & D. Cohen Reis, "Thinking Civically" An Investigation of Civic Identity and Civic Participation Among Portuguese Youth in Ontario and Quebec.
- Nunes, F., Viva Health. Collaboration with Portuguese-Canadian National Congress [lead organization], the Centre for Health Promotion at the University of Toronto, the Joint Centre of Excellence for Research on Immigration and Settlement- Toronto (CERIS). Researching and producing a report on the health status of the Portuguese Community in Canada. Producing a Plain Language Assessment Tool.
- Nunes, F. www.Força.ca. Partnership with Portuguese-Canadian National Congress [lead organization], University of Toronto, Mount St Vincent University (myself), Toronto Catholic District School Board, Portuguese Benevolent Society, Carrefour des Jeunes Lusophones du Québec). Compiling an online collection that features historical documents, contributions, language and traditions of Luso-descendants in Canadian society. Funded by Canadian Culture Online.
- C. Okana, E. Tastsoglou, C. Belkhodja, L' impact des lois antiterroristes. La lois sur l'immigration et la loi sur la protection des réfugiés. L'introspection de la communauté arabe et musulmane du Nouveau-Brunswick et de la Nouvelle-Écosse. Refereed Final Report, submitted to the Canadian Race Relations Foundation, in fulfillment of research contract, 75 pages.
- Sweatman, M. & Tirone, Susan. (Submitted). "The perceptions young Canadians have of their international community experience: A narrative study." *Loisir et Societé/Society and Leisure.*
- E. Tastsoglou, "Gender, Security and Immigration in Atlantic Canada. Policy Implications", in OUR DIVERSE CITIES, Number 5, Spring 2008, pp. 149-154.

Tirone, Susan., Miller, A.J., Livingston, L. & Smith, E. (Submitted). "The importance of sport and coaching as leisure for ethnic minority newcomers in Halifax, Nova Scotia." *Leisure/Loisir*.

M. Yax-Fraser, E. Tastsoglou, « Attraction, Promotion and Retention of Immigrants in Atlantic Canada: A Synthesis of Existing Research and Recommendations », Commissioned Report by CIC (Citizenship and Immigration Canada), pp. 105, Spring 2008.

JUSTICE, POLICING AND SECURITY

Publication information not currently available due to reorganization of the domain to seek new leader and develop a plan for the attraction of younger scholars.

CONFERENCE PAPERS

<u>CITIZENSHIP AND SOCIAL, CULTURAL AND CIVIC INTEGRATION /</u> <u>CITOYENNETÉ ET INTÉGRATION SOCIALE, CULTURELLE ET CIVIQUE</u>

Black, David. (February 2009). Paper presented to the annual convention of the International Studies Association, New York, NY, on "Out of Africa? The Harper Government and the Developing World."

Black, David. (February 2009). Paper presented to the annual meeting of the International Studies Association, New York, NY, on "Canada and Peace Operations in Africa: The Logic and Limits of Engagement."

Black, David. (June 2008). Paper presented to the annual meeting of ISA-Canada and the Canadian Political Science Association, on "'Africa' as serial morality tale in Canadian foreign policy."

Black, David. (May 2008). Invited Presentation on Plenary Panel on International Development Through Sport for the Conference *To Remember is to Resist: Forty Years of Sport and Social Change, 1968-2008*, University of Toronto. Title: "The Ambiguities of Development: Implications for Development Through Sport."

Cassin, A. Marguerite. (2008). "The Secular and the Sacred: embodied faith and belief in the context of secular economic and governing institutions." In Workshop "Reasonable (religious) Accommodation", Canadian Race Relations Foundation 2008 Award of Excellence Symposium, Calgary

Cassin, A. Marguerite. (October 2008). "Settling In and Moving On: Immigration Women Experience Nova Scotia" in Family Immigration and Employment: A Gendered Perspective, 13th International Metropolis Conference, Bonn, (first presentation for Pilot project funded by AMC).

Cassin, A. Marguerite. (March 2009). "Immigration Nova Scotia" in "Immigration and Provinces Session" 11th Metropolis Conference, Calgary.

Cassin, A. Marguerite & Madine VanderPlaat. (2008). "Race, Democracy and Social Cohesion: Contribution of Canada's Action Plan Against Racism" Workshop on Consideration of Canada's Action Plan Against Racism, Canadian Race Relations Foundation 2008 Award of Excellence Symposium, Calgary

Ramos, Howard with Emilie M. Hafner-Burton and James Ron. 2009. "Constructing a World of Human Rights Regions." International Studies Association Annual Conference.

New York City.

Ramos, Howard. 2008. "Introduction to Resources on Canadian Immigrant and Ethnic Data." RDC COOL Conference, Ottawa, ON.

Ramos, Howard. April 6, 2008. "Introduction to Resources Available in Universities and Research Data Centres." National Metropolis Conference, Halifax, NS.

Ramos, Howard. April 6, 2008. "Introduction to Statistics Canada and Citizenship and Immigration Canada on-line resources. National Metropolis Conference, Halifax, NS.

Ramos, Howard. April 3, 2008. "Working in Academia" National Metropolis Conference, Saint Mary's University, Halifax, NS.

COLLECTIVITES D'ACCUEIL ET LEUR ROLE DANS L'ATTRAIT, L'INTEGRATION ET LA RETENTION DES NOUVEAUX ARRIVANTS ET DES MEMBRES DES MINORITES

Aïcha Benimmas, Jimmy Bourque, Sébastien Poirier, *La participation citoyenne des parents immigrants en MFM*, 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009.

Benimmas, Aïcha L'intégration des élèves immigrants en MFM à travers les perceptions parentales, 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009.

Godin, Gilberte Les jeunes francophones en milieu minoritaire savent-ils revendiguer? 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009

Aïcha Benimmas, Jimmy Bourque, Sébastien Poirier, *La participation citoyenne des parents immigrants en MFM*, 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009

Codjo, Jean, Les élèves immigrants, richesse et défis pour l'école francophone en MFM 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009

Lucile Tailleu *Frontières virtuelles : comment maximiser le potentiel d'internet*, 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009

Lucile Tailleu, *L'accueil de l'autre par les petites communautés d'ici*, 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009

Sylvia Kasparian, La rencontre des nations, une expérience unique en son genre : Quand les immigrants rencontrent les Amérindiens de Metepenagiag, 11^e Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary 19-22 mars 2009

Lucile Tailleu, Intégration : immigration et avenir des communautés francophones néo- brunswickoises, 26 mars 2009 Université de Moncton

Benimmas, A. et Kamano, L. *Parents of immigrant pupils and teacher training in French-speaking environment.* 3^e On New Shores Conference, International Forum on Issues of Immigrant and Refugee Children, Youth, and Families, Guelph du 6 au 7 novembre 2008.

Christophe Traisnel, Conjuguer particularisme local et diversité culturelle. L'immigrant et la diversité culturelle dans les discours identitaires des nationalismes de contestation au Québec, en Acadie et en Wallonie, Journée pré-conférence Métropolis sur l'immigration francophone au Canada, Moncton, Christophe Traisnel, 2^{er} avril 2008.

Isabelle Violette et Christophe Traisnel, *La diversité culturelle et l'immigration dans le discours des militants acadiens*, 10e Conférence annuelle Metropolis tenue à Halifax du 3 au 6 avril 2008.

Nicole Gallant, L'immigration en Acadie: enjeux et recherche, atelier Petits dérangements, ICRPP, Moncton, 25 mars 2008.

Nicole Gallant, The CDI project of the AMC: A multilayered approach to the social networks of immigrant men and women, Conférence Nationale Métropolis, Hailfax, avril 2008.

Nicole Gallant, *La question de l'identité francophone*, Journée pré-conférence Métropolis sur l'immigration francophone au Canada, Moncton, 2^{er} avril 2008.

Nicole Gallant, Questions d'identité et d'inclusion parmi les jeunes en Acadie et en Fransaskoisie, colloque La jeunesse et les minorités de langues officielles au Canada, Association d'études canadiennes, Montréal, 28-29 février 2008.

Nicole Gallant, *Under which conditions can national minorities develop civic conceptions of nationhood*?, ASEN conference, London UK, April 2008.

ECONOMIC AND LABOUR MARKET INTEGRATION

J.T. McDonald "Earnings, Occupation, and Schooling Decisions of Immigrants with Medical Degrees: Evidence for Canada and the United States", invited paper at a conference entitled "High-Skilled Immigration in a Globalized Labor Market" hosted by the American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research, Washington DC April 22-23.

J.T. McDonald "The labour market experiences of immigrants with medical degrees" poster presentation at a conference entitled 'Population, Work and Family Policy Research Symposium', Gatineau Quebec Dec 9-10

GENDER, MIGRATION AND DIVERSITY/ IMMIGRANT WOMEN (ADDRESSING THE FAMILY, CHILDREN AND YOUTH PRIORITY)

Abdelrahman Amin, Maha & Brigham, Susan (in press). *Exploring the boundaries of Lifelong Learning for Lifelong Health: Immigrant Women's Knowledge, Beliefs, Attitudes and Perceptions about Cancer.* Canadian Association for the Study of Adult Education (CASAE) Conference Proceedings. 28th National Conference, Carleton University, Ottawa, ON. May 25 – 27, 2009.

Brigham. Susan. *Exploring the boundaries of Lifelong Learning for Lifelong Health: Immigrant Women's Knowledge, Beliefs, Attitudes and Perceptions about Cancer.* Co-presenter: Maha Abdelrahman Amin. Canadian Association for the Study of Adult Education (CASAE) 28th National Conference, Carleton University, Ottawa, ON. May 25 – 27, 2009. (Accepted)

Brigham. Susan. "Why open a closed door?": Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Practices of Arabic Speaking Immigrant Women in Halifax, Nova Scotia. Co-presenters: Maha Abdelrahman Amin, Susan Brigham & Swarna Weerasinghe. Poster presentation for Cancer Research Symposium. Lord Nelson Hotel, Halifax, NS. November 10, 2008.

Brigham. Susan. "Why open a closed door?": Breast and cervical cancer screening practices of Arabic-speaking immigrant women in Halifax, NS. (Poster presentation). Co-presenters: Maha Abdelrhman Amin Research and Scholarship Open House. Mount Saint Vincent University, Halifax, Nova Scotia, February 11, 2009.

Chira, Sinziana. "The Student is Male: The Role of Gender in Tertiary International Education." Gender, Migration and Diversity / Immigrant Families, Graduate Research Workshop, Gender, Migration and Diversity/ Immigrant Women Research Domain, Atlantic Metropolis Centre of Excellence and Department of Sociology and Criminology, and Department Political Science Saint Mary's University, Halifax, April 9, 2009

Christiansen-Ruffman, Linda. "IFUN's Methodology of Self-Presentations, Bio-Contextuality and its Theoretical and Methodological Implications for Sociology: A Feminist Perspective," International Sociological Association's First ISA Forum of Sociology, Barcelona, Spain, at Joint Session between Research Committees 32 and 38 entitled Biographical and Feminist Methods in a Global Framework, Sept. 5-8, 2008.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra, "Immigration and the Mandate of Marketization: Some Implications for Gender and Citizenship." Invited Presentation, *Immigration, Citizenship and Borders: Issues Facing the EU and Canada Conference*, Dalhousie University, April 3, 2009.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra, "Federalism and Devolution: Democratic Developments or Dilemmas for Women? A Case Study of the NSNP." Invited presentation, *Engendering Policy and Devolution Conference*, University of Warwick, Coventry, England. November 21, 2008.

Dobrowolsky, Alexandra, "The Cost(s) of Marketization: The Gendered Repercussions of New Immigration Strategies." *Gender, Migration and Citizenship: Balancing Labour Market Imperatives and Care Workshop* organized for the 13th International Metropolis Conference, Bonn, Germany 27-31, October, 2008.

Kebe, Amy. "Marginal Citizenships: Female Migrant Labour in Globalization." Gender, Migration and Diversity / Immigrant Families, Graduate Research Workshop, Gender, Migration and Diversity/ Immigrant Women Research Domain, Atlantic Metropolis Centre of Excellence and Department of Sociology and Criminology, and Department Political Science Saint Mary's University, Halifax, April 9, 2009.

Kebe, Amy. Round Table Participation: "Criteria families chose to Migrate to Canada," Frontiers of Canadian Migration, 11th National Metropolis Conference, March 19-22, 2009 Calgary.

Nunes, Fernando. The state of research on Portuguese-Canadians. Paper presented at the PCNC National Health Meeting, Days Inn Conference Centre: Toronto, ON. May, 2008.

Nunes, Fernando. Barriers and support mechanisms in the Education of Portuguese-Canadian Youth: A community-university collaborative research project. Paper presented at the CU Expo08: Community-University Exposition, University of Victoria: Victoria, May 2008.

Nunes, Fernando. Liminality and the children of immigrants. Paper presented at the 10th National Metropolis Conference, World Trade Centre: Halifax, NS, April 2008.

Nunes, F. & D'Sylva, A. Portuguese-Canadian youth: Barriers and supports towards post-secondary education. Paper presented at 10th National Metropolis Conference, World Trade & Convention Centre: Halifax, NS. April 2008.

Nunes, Fernando. Towards a greater focus on ethnicity in the current diversity dialogue. Paper presented at the Mount Saint Vincent University Faculty Dialogue Series, Halifax, N.S. March 2008.

Tastsoglou Evangelia and Dobrowolsky, Alexandra. "Attraction and Retention Priorities and Problems: Implications for Immigrant Women" Invited presentation,

Promoting Immigration to Atlantic Canada: Where is the Welcome Mat for Women? Lunch and Learn Session organized by the New Brunswick Advisory Council on the Status of Women, Crowne Plaza Hotel, Fredericton New Brunswick, December 9, 2009.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia, "Attraction, Promotion and Retention of Immigrants in Atlantic Canada: A Gendered View of Policies and Practices" Paper presented at Workshop on "Gender, Migration and Citizenship: Balancing Labour Market Imperatives and Care" in the 13th International Metropolis Conference in Bonn, Germany, Oct. 27-31, 2009.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia, roundtable presentation on the "Advantages and Challenges of Qualitative Research at the roundtable on "Qualitative Research: The Potential of a Useful Tool in Policy Research", co-organized with Miu Chung Yan et al, National Metropolis Conference, Calgary, Alberta, March 2009.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia, roundtable presentation on "How does Migration affect Gender Equality", at the roundtable on "Feminism and Migration", organized by Glenda Bonifacio, National Metropolis Conference, Calgary, Alberta, March 2009.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia, "Networking for Families: Immigrant Women and Integration in Atlantic Canada", paper presented at workshop on "Foreign Brides and Family Integration from Fort St. John to Halifax" (co-organized with Catherine Nolin) National Metropolis Conference, Calgary, Alberta, March 2009.

Tastsoglou, Evangelia, "Attraction, Promotion and Retention of Immigrants in Atlantic Canada", presentation to the Atlantic Population Table, Halifax, April 2009.

Alipranti, Laura and Evangelia Tastsoglou, "Organizing Migrant Domestic Work at Local, National and Transnational Levels" presented at the *American Sociological Association* conference in Boston, August 1-4, 2008 (joint paper with Laura Alipranti. Presentation made by L. Alipranti).

Tastsoglou, E. "Imagining the Nation: Immigrant Women's Labour, Ethnic / Transnational Identities and the Greek Diaspora in Toronto", paper presented at the *Women's Worlds 2008* International Conference in Madrid, Spain, July 3-9, 2008.

Tirone, Susan. (January 20, 2009). "More than fun and games: The role of leisure, sport and recreation in welcoming immigrants." Brown Bag Lunch Seminar, Metropolis Project, Ottawa, ON.

Tirone, Susan. (November, 2008). "Leisure Policy, Social Justice and Immigrants." *Annual Research symposium, Recreation Nova Scotia*, Halifax.

Tirone, Susan. (Oct, 2008). "Negotiating opportunities for social integration and leisure: Second generation South Asian Canadians. "Abstracts of the 10th World Leisure Congress, Quebec City, PQ

Tirone, Susan., Livingston, L., Miller, J. & Smith, E. (2008). "The importance of sport and coaching as leisure for ethnic minority newcomers in Halifax." *Abstracts of the Canadian Congress of Leisure Research (CCLR 12),* May 13-16, Concordia University, pp. 453-456. Montreal, PQ.

VanderPlaat, Madine "Child Migrants and Policy-Research Priorities and Directions". 11th National Metropolis Conference. Calgary: March 19-22, 2009.

VanderPlaat, Madine "Immigrant/Refugee Families, Children and Youth-Future Policy-Research Directions". 11th National Metropolis Conference. Calgary: March 19-22, 2009.

VanderPlaat, Madine "Managing the Best Interests of the Child: Asylum Seeking Minors". 13th International Metropolis Conference. Bonn, Germany: October 27-31, 2008.

VanderPlaat, Madine "Understanding the Impact of Family on Integration Experiences: What can the Longitudinal Survey of Immigrants in Canada Tell Us?". 13th International Metropolis Conference. Bonn, Germany: October 27-31, 2008.

VanderPlaat, Madine "Race, Democracy and Social Cohesion: Contribution of Canada's Action Plan Against Racism". Canadian Race Relations Foundation 2008 Award of Excellence Symposium. Calgary: April 30-May 2, 2008.

VanderPlaat, Madine Organizer and Moderator. "Gender, Conflict and Violence Within Immigrant Families." 11th National Metropolis Conference. Calgary: March 19-22, 2009.

Watson, C & Tirone, Susan. "The Black Church in Nova Scotia as Place: Young girls, leisure and health." Ontario Research Council on Leisure. Symposium April, 2009, Ottawa.

JUSTICE, POLICING AND SECURITY

Cassin, A. Marguerite. "Embodied Faith and Belief in the Context of'securitized Environments". 13th International Metropolis Conference, Bonn, October 2008

Further conference paper information is not currently available due to reorganization of the domain to seek a new leader and develop a plan for attraction of younger scholars.

APPENDIX 4: WORKING PAPERS SERIES

The AMC's Working Papers Series is related to the broad mandate of the Metropolis Project. The Working Papers produced by the Atlantic Metropolis Centre are designed to: (1) speed up the dissemination of research results relevant to the interests and concerns of Metropolis researchers, policy-makers, NGOs; (2) allow for an avenue where Metropolis researchers in the Atlantic region can disseminate research and information specific to immigration, migration, integration and diversity in Atlantic Canada.

During 2008-09, the following papers were published:

- L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Brooks, Alberta. Jean-Olivier Roy, document de recherche 10.
- L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Clare, Nouvelle-Écosse. Jean-Oliver Roy, document de recherche 11.
- L'immigration rurale en milieu francophone minoritaire : Gravelbourg, Saskatchewan. Jean-Oliver Roy, document de recherche 12.
- Discourses of Citizenship and Community: Arab Immigrant Women and their Narratives of Home and Belonging in Halifax, NS. Dalal Abdul-Razzaq, Working Paper 13.
- Développer une Stratégie en Matière d'Accueil et d'Intégration en Milieu Minoritaire Francophone et Urbain : l'expérience de quelques structures d'accueil à travers le Canada. Miriam Beaudry et Chedly Belkhodja, document de recherche 14.
- World Migration in the Age of Globalization: Policy Implications and Challenges. Peter Li, Working Paper 15.
- Reconfigurations identitaires en milieu minoritaire acadien : les enjeux sociolinguistiques vécus par des immigrants francophones à Moncton. Isabelle Violette et Annette Boudreau, document de recherche 16.
- Gender and Transnational Migration: Tracing the Impacts 'Home'.
 Katherine Laurie, Working Paper 17.
- Bridging, Bonding, and Trusting: The Influence of Social Capital and Trust on Immigrants' Sense of Belonging to Canada. Patrick Pearce, Working Paper 18.
- End of Life Care for South Asian Immigrants in Halifax, Nova Scotia: Preliminary Findings. Swarna Weerasinghe, Victor Maddalena & Farhana Kanth, Working Paper 19.

- Immigrant Entrepreneurs in Nova Scotia: Factors that Contribute to and Hinder Success. Najma Sharif, Working Paper 20.
- Francisation, scolarisation et socialisation des élèves immigrants en milieu minoritaire francophone du Nouveau-Brunswick : Quels défis et quelles perspectives ? Yamina Bouchamma, document de recherche 21
- The Cultural Transition of African Children and the Effects on Parenting in Post-Migration: A Preliminary Overview of Findings. Joseph Nyemah & Madine VanderPlaat, Working Paper 22.
- Integration of International Medical Graduates in Rural Nova Scotia Communities: A Qualitative Pilot Study. Blye Frank & Patricia Saunders, Working Paper 23.

APPENDIX 5: KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER / MOBILIZATION ACTIVITIES

CENTRE ACTIVITIES – HALIFAX AND MONCTON NODES

Event Title	Atlantic Metropolis Centre Open House
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer
Date, Location	December 5, 2008, Halifax Node AMC
Type of Event	Other: Open House

Event Title	"Constructing a Research Question", Madine VanderPlaat
Audience	MISA-HILC
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	17 Februrary, 2009, MISA-HILC
Type of Event	Presentation

Event Title	Annual Policy Research Symposium
Audience	Open
Presentation	The symposium focused on the Justice, Policing and Security domain as well as the Welcoming Communities domain, with a focus on Recent Korean Immigration in Moncton, NB.
Nature of Involvement	Organizers (Chedly Belkhodja, AMC Moncton & Halifax staff)
Date, Location	May 20-21 2008, Université de Moncton
Type of Event	Symposium

CITIZENSHIP AND SOCIAL, CULTURAL AND CIVIC INTEGRATION / CITOYENNETE ET INTEGRATION SOCIALE, CULTURELLE ET CIVIQUE

Person	Ramos, Howard
Event Title	CSA Annual Meeting
Audience	Academic
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Presentation Title	"Social Movements: Case Studies"- Discussant
Date, Location	2008, Vancouver, BC
Type of Event	Conference

Person	Ramos, Howard
Event Title	CSA Annual Meeting
Audience	Academic
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Presentation Title	"1968 and its Social Movements: Reflections, Revisions,
	Revolutions."- Discussant
Date, Location	2008, Vancouver, BC
Type of Event	Conference

Person	Ramos, Howard
Event Title	CSA Annual Meeting
Audience	Academic
Nature of Involvement	Organizer
Presentation Title	"Political Opportunities."
Date, Location	2008, Vancouver, BC
Type of Event	Conference

Person	Ramos, Howard
Event Title	Atlantic Research Data Centre Event
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	January 31, 2009 Halifax, NS
Presentation Title	"Introduction to Stata."
Type of Event	Seminar

Person	David Black
Event Title	Radio Noon (CBC Halifax) interview on the human rights
	implications of the Beijing Olympics
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	June 2008, Halifax, NS
Presentation Title	N/A
Type of Event	Interview

Person	David Black
Event Title	STAND
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	March 2009, Halifax, NS
Presentation Title	Dalhousie panel participation on the Responsibility to Protect and the crisis in Darfur
Type of Event	Other

COLLECTIVITES D'ACCUEIL ET LEUR ROLE DANS L'ATTRAIT, L'INTEGRATION ET LA RETENTION DES NOUVEAUX ARRIVANTS ET DES MEMBRES DES MINORITES

Person	Christophe Traisnel, Sylvia Kasparian
Event Title	« L'accueil de l'autre par les « petites » communautés d'ici, le,
	Conférence de Métropolis à Calgary. Participants : Diane
	Farmer (Université de Toronto), Nicole Gallant (INRS), Yvonne
	Hébert (Université de Calgary), Sylvia Kasparian (Université de
	Moncton), Stacey Wilson-Forsberg (Université du Nouveau-
	Brunswick), Mamady Camara (Université de Calgary),
	Stéphane Pronovost (Agence de développement économique
	du Canada), Lucille Tailleu (CAIIM).
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer
Date, Location	20 mars 2009
Presentation Title	Présentation de la situation de la mobilité au Yukon
Type of Event	Other: Table ronde

Person	Chedly Belkhodja
Event Title	Korean immigrants in Moncton This session presented the case of a recent influx of a comparatively large number of Korean immigrants in Moncton. Participants: Chedly Belkhodja, Welcoming Communities Priority Leader Sandra Foreman, District 2 Councillor, Moncton Ann Kim, Assistant Professor, Department of Sociology, York University The Economic Integration of Korean Immigrants and Consequences for Social Engagement Cheon Ae Park, President, Moncton Korean Association of NB
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer, Presenter
Date, Location	Université de Moncton 21 mai 2008
Type of Event	Symposium

Person	Benimmas, A. et Bourque, J.
Event Title	L'intégration et l'engagement citoyen des immigrants en MFM L'atelier traite de l'intégration et la participation citoyenne des immigrants en milieu francophone minoritaire et des représentations des jeunes immigrants et de leurs parents en matière d'engagement citoyen en comparaison avec celles des jeunes de la société d'accueil et leurs parents. L'atelier a rassemblé des intervenants dans des ONG, des districts scolaires de même que des chercheurs appartenant à quatre universités canadiennes.
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer
Date, Location	Calgary 19-22 mars 2009, 11 ^e Conférence de Métropolis
Type of Event	Workshop

Person	Godfrey Baldacchino
Event Title	The Migration Narrative in Atlantic Canada: Intra-provincial
	Migration, the Effect of Social Capital and Welcoming
	Communities
Audience	
Nature of Involvement	
Date, Location	Ottawa, June 26 2008.
Presentation Title	
Type of Event	UPEI CIC Research Network Meeting, Ottawa, June 26 2008.

Person	Godfrey Baldacchino
Event Title	The Migration Narrative in Atlantic Canada: Intra-provincial Migration, the Effect of Social Capital and Welcoming Communities
Audience	
Nature of Involvement	
Date, Location	Ottawa, June 26 2008.
Presentation Title	
Type of Event	UPEI CIC Research Network Meeting, Ottawa, June 26 2008.

Person	Sylvia Kasparian & Christophe Traisnel
Event Title	Les femmes immigrantes du Sud et leur intégration
Audience	
Nature of Involvement	Organisateurs
Date, Location	Moncton, 3 février 2009
Presentation Title	
Type of Event	Café diversité

ECONOMIC AND LABOUR MARKET INTEGRATION

Person	Ather H Akbari
Event Title	Community Immigrant Retention in Rural Ontario (CIRRO) A
	Focus on Attracting and Retaining Immigrants in Rural Ontario
	Communities
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	January 29, 2009 – Chatham Kent, Ontario
Presentation Title	Immigration and rural economic development
Type of Event	Workshop

Person	Ather H Akbari
Event Title	National Metropolis Conference
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer, Presenter
Date, Location	March, 2009
Presentation Title	Impact of Provincial Nominee Program
Type of Event	Conference

Person	Ted McDonald
Event Title	Immigration, Migration and Retention in rural New Brunswick
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer
Date, Location	Feb 6-09
Type of Event	Other

Person	David Chaundy
Event Title	Immigration, Migration and Retention in rural New Brunswick
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer
Date, Location	Feb 6-09
Type of Event	Other

Person	Claudette Legault and Gerry Mills
Event Title	National Metropolis Conference
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	March, 2009
Presentation Title	PNP outcomes and challenges
Type of Event	Conference

Person	Wimal Rankaduwa
Event Title	National Metropolis Conference
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	March, 2009
Presentation Title	Productivity, Immigration and Economic Development in PEI
Type of Event	Conference

Person	Wimal Rankaduwa
Event Title	PEI Population Network
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Presenter
Date, Location	May, 2008
Presentation Title	An Analysis of Immigrant Profiles in PEI
Type of Event	Conference, Other: PEI Population Network

GENDER, MIGRATION AND DIVERSITY/ IMMIGRANT WOMEN (ADDRESSING THE FAMILY, CHILDREN AND YOUTH PRIORITY)

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou and Dr. Alexandra Dobrowolsky
Event Title	Graduate Research Workshop II: Gender, Migration, Diversity,
	Immigrant Families (Spring Session)
	(with keynote address from Visiting Professor Dr. Marina
	Petronoti; and, featuring the research by professors and
	students: Nanok Cha; Sinziana Chira; Amy Kebe; Yulduz
	Kutlieva; Robert Nathan; Serperi Sevgur).
Audience	Everyone
Nature of Involvement	Organizer and Attendee
Date, Location	April 9, 2009, Saint Mary's University, McNally Boardroom
Presentation Title	Dr. Petronoti's talk entitled, "Assessing Multiculturalism in
	Greece; A Note on the Intersection of Status, Ethnicity and
	Gender."
Type of Event	Workshop

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou, Dr. Catherine Nolin
Event Title	Workshop on "Foreign Brides and Family Integration: From Fort
	St. John to Halifax", presentation workshop, National Metropolis
	Conference, March 2009, Calgary
Audience	Academic
Nature of Involvement	Organizer and Presenter
Date, Location	Calgary, March 2009
Presentation Title	Immigrant Women Networking For Families" (by E. Tastsoglou)
Type of Event	Workshop

Person	Evangelia Tastsoglou			
Event Title	Roundtable on "Feminism and Migration" National Metropolis			
	Conference, March 2009, Calgary			
Audience	Academic			
Nature of Involvement	Presenter			
Date, Location	Calgary, March 2009			
Type of Event	Workshop			
Presentation Title	"How does migration affect gender equality?"			

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou, Miu Chung Yan, et al.			
Event Title	Roundtable on "Qualitative Research: The Potential of a Useful			
	Tool in Policy Research" National Metropolis Conference,			
Audience	Academic			
Nature of Involvement	Presenter			
Date, Location	Calgary, March 2009			
Type of Event	Workshop			
Presentation Title	"Advantages and Challenges in Qualitative Research"			

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou and Dr. Alexandra Dobrowolsky			
Event Title	Attracting Immigrants to Atlantic Canada: Where is the			
	Welcome Mat for Women			
Audience	Everyone			
Nature of Involvement	Presenter			
Date, Location	December 9, 2008, Crowne Plaza in Fredericton, New			
	Brunswick.			
Presentation Title	"Attraction and Retention Priorities and Problems: The			
	Implications for Immigrant Women"			
Type of Event	Brown Bag			

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou			
Event Title	Atlantic Population Table Quarterly Meeting			
Audience	Non-Academic			
Nature of Involvement	Presenter			
Date, Location	April 2009,			
Presentation Title	"Attraction, Promotion and Retention of Immigrants in Atlantic			
	Canada"			
Type of Event	Meeting			

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou					
Event Title	Graduate Research Workshop I: Gender, Migration and					
	Diversity/Immigrant Families (Winter Session)					
	(with Keynote presentation from Visiting Professor Dr. Sandy Petrinioti; and, featuring the research of graduate students: Maha Amin; Nanok Cha; Wendy Robinson; Lori Root; Serperi Sevgur; Maria Jose Yax-Fraser)					
Audience	Everyone					
Nature of Involvement	Organizer Attendee					
Date, Location	Friday, December 12, 2008, Saint Mary's University					
Presentation Title	"Explaining the 'New' European migration: A Gendered Political					
	Economy Approach"					
Type of Event	Workshop					

Person	Dr. Evangelia Tastsoglou				
Event Title	Graduate Research Workshop I: Gender, Migration and				
	Diversity/Immigrant Families (Winter Session)				
	(with Keynote presentation from Visiting Professor Dr. Sandy				
	Petrinioti; and, featuring the research of graduate students:				
	Maha Amin; Nanok Cha; Wendy Robinson; Lori Root; Serperi				
	Sevgur; Maria Jose Yax-Fraser)				
Audience	Everyone				
Nature of Involvement	Organizer, Attendee, Presenter				
Date, Location	Friday, December 12, 2008, Saint Mary's University				
Presentation Title	Projects and Funding Opportunities under the Federal				
	Research Priority for Metropolis: 'Families, Children,, and				
	Youth"				
Type of Event	Workshop				

Person	Dr. Linda Christiansen-Ruffman				
Event Title	"Moving Feminism Forward/ Féminisme, en avant"				
Audience	Everyone				
Nature of Involvement	Organizer Attendee				
Date, Location	May 9-15, 2008, Mont Orford Park, Quebec				
Type of Event	Workshop				

Person	Dr. Linda Christiansen-Ruffman				
Event Title	International Feminist University Network planning meetings				
Audience	Everyone				
Nature of Involvement	Organizer Attendee				
Date, Location	April 23-May 4, 2008, Toronto				
Type of Event	Workshop				

JUSTICE, POLICING AND SECURITY

No knowledge transfer events took place in 2008-2009 due to domain restructuring.

.

APPENDIX 6: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NAME/ROLE	AFFILIATION	CONTACT		
Belkhodja, Chedly	Université de	chedly.belkhodja@umoncton.ca		
AMC Director	Moncton	(506) 858-3749		
Boghen, Andrew	Université de	andrew.boghen@umoncton.ca		
Lead Universities	Moncton	(506) 858-4310		
Mary-Ellen Valkenier	Citizenship and	mary-ellen.valkenier@cic.gc.ca		
CIC Representative	Immigration Atlantic	(902) 426-0794		
Crago, Martha Lead Universities	Dalhousie University	Martha.crago@dal.ca		
Burke, Nellie	Immigration Policy	nellieburke@gov.nl.ca		
(Alternate Smita Joshi)	and Planning, Newfoundland and	(709) 729-6967		
Representative from	Labrador			
Provinces	Labrador			
Burton, David	Canadian Heritage	david.burton@pch.gc.ca		
(Alternate Gabrielle	Nova Scotia	(902) 426-4184		
Verri)				
Representative from				
Canadian Heritage				
Cassin, Marguerite	Dalhousie University	Marguerite.cassin@dal.ca		
AMC Director	Formarky I Iniversité	(902) 494-1641/860-4055		
de Finney, James Member at large	Formerly Université de Moncton	definnj@umoncton.ca (819) 322-5480		
Duncan, Howard	Metropolis Project	howard.duncan@cic.gc.ca		
Metropolis Project		(613) 957-5941		
Head				
Ghanem, Ashraf	Province of New	ashraf.ghanem@gnb.ca		
Representative from	Brunswick	(506) 453-8707		
Provinces	Matura dia Carrata riat	Laura lafranca @ sia sa sa		
Lafrance, Laure	Metropolis Secretariat	Laure.lafrance@cic.gc.ca (613) 957-5848		
Representative from Metropolis		(013) 937-3848		
Maicher, George	New Brunswick	maicher@nbnet.nb.ca		
NGO Representative	Multicultural Council			
Mandale, Maurice	ACOA	Maurice.mandale@acoa-		
Representative from		apeca.gc.ca		
ACOA		(506) 851-7016		
Mills, Gerry	Halifax Immigrant	gmills@hilc.ns.ca		
NGO Representative	Learning Centre			
Morris, Megan	Association for New Canadians of	mmorris@nfld.net		
NGO Representative	Newfoundland and			
	Labrador			
Murphy, Raymond	Union of New	umnb@nb.aibn.com		
Representative from	Brunswick	(506) 523-7991		
Municipalities	Municipalities			

Murphy, Terry	Saint Mary's	terry.murphy@smu.ca
Chair	University	(902) 420-5406
Oehling, Mika	SSHRC	Mika.oehling@sshrc.ca
Representative from		(613) 992-4227
SSHRC		
Rankaduwa, Wimal	Prince Edward Island	wrankaduwa@upei.ca
NGO Representative	Multicultural Council	wrankadu@dal.ca
Tremblay, Reeta	Memorial University of	rtrembla@mun.ca
Representative from a	Newfoundland	
Collaborating		
University		
VanderPlaat, Madine	Saint Mary's	Madine.vanderplaat@smu.ca
AMC Director	University	(902) 496-8289/423-1475
Wright, Don	University of New	wrightd@unb.ca
Lead Universities	Brunswick -	
	Fredericton	
Mac Woodman	CMHC Market	mwoodman@cmhc-schl.gc.ca
	Analysis centre	

APPENDIX 7: PROGRAM AND DISSEMINATION COMMITTEE

NAME	ROLE	AFFILIATION
VanderPlaat, Madine	AMC Director	Saint Mary's University
Belkhodja, Chedly	AMC Director	Université de Moncton
Cassin, Marguerite	AMC Director	Dalhousie University
Mallard, Jane	Provincial Government Representative	Population Secretariat Prince Edward Island
Kevin Silliker	Municipal Government Representative	City of Moncton
Sylvie LeBlanc	Federal Government Representative	Canadian Heritage
Sheppard Kutcher, Jan	NGO Representative	Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association NS
Quaicoe, Lloydetta	NGO Representative	Sharing Our Cultures NL
Jean François Thibault	Co-Domain Leader PJS	Université de Moncton
Akbari, Ather	Co-Domain Leader Econ	Saint Mary's University
McDonald, Ted	Co-Domain Leader Econ	University of New Brunswick Fredericton
Traisnel, Christophe	Co-Domain Leader WC	Université de Moncton
Kasparian, Sylvia	Co-Domain Leader WC	Université de Moncton
Tastsoglou, Evangelia	Co-Domain Leader G/IW	Saint Mary's University
Dobrowolsky, Alexandra	Co-Domain Leader G/IW	Saint Mary's University
Gardiner Barber, Pauline	Domain Leader	Dalhousie University

APPENDIX 8: PARTNERS LIST

Organization Name	Organization Type	Address	Contact Name	Contact Info
Dalhousie University	University	Dalhousie University 6299 South Street Halifax, NS B3H 4R2	Martha Crago	martha.crago@dal.ca
Saint Mary's University	University	Saint Mary's University 923 Robie Street Halifax, NS B3H 3C3	Terrence Murphy	terry.murphy@smu.ca
Université de Moncton	University	Université de Moncton 165 ave, Massey Moncton, NB E1A3E9	Andrew Boghen	andrew.boghen@umoncton.c a
University of New Brunswick (Fredericton)	University	Department of Political Science University of New Brunswick, Fredericton NB, E3B 5A3	Don Wright	wrightd@unb.ca
Acadia University	University	Department of Sociology Acadia University Wolfville, Nova Scotia B0P 1X0	Jim Sacouman	jim.sacouman@acadiau.ca
Memorial University of Newfoundland	University	President's Office – Room A2028 Memorial University of Newfoundland St. John's, NL A1C 5S7 P.O. Box 4200	Axel Meisen	president@mun.ca
Mount Allison University	University	Office of Research Services 82A York Street Sackville, NB E4L 1G2	Anna Sheridan – Jonah	asheridanjonah@mta.ca
Atlantic Region Association of Immigrant Serving Agencies (ARAISA)	NGO	Assoc. for New Canadians 144 Military Road St. John's, NF A1C 2E6.	Gerry Mills	gmills@hilc.ns.ca
Association for New Canadians of Newfoundland and Labrador	NGO	Assoc. for New Canadians 144 Military Road St. John's, NF A1C 2E6.	Megan Morris	mmorris@nfld.net
Prince Edward Island Association for Newcomers to Canada	NGO	25 University Avenue Suite 400, Holman Building (4th floor) Confederation Court Mall PO Box 2846 Charlottetown, PE C1A 8C4	Kevin Arsenault	exdir@isn.net
Carrefour d'immigration rurale NB (CIR)	NGO	Casier postal 2143 Saint – Leonard NB, E7E 2M7	Jacques Lapointe	jlapointe@nb.aibn.com
Carrefour d'immigration	NGO	Carrefour d'immigration rurale Évangéline	Georges Monfray	georges@ipe.gazel.ca

rurale Évangeline (CIR)		C.P. 67, 48, chemin Mill Wellington (ÎPÉ.) C0B 2E0		
Centre d'accueil et d'intégration des immigrants de Moncton (CAIIM)	NGO	236, rue Saint George Bureau 200 Moncton NB E1C 1W1	Kabule W. Weva	info@caiimm.org
Fédération Acadienne de la Nouvelle Écosse	NGO	54 rue Queen Dartmouth, Nouvelle- Écosse B2Y 1G3	Jean Léger	jleger@fane.ns.ca
Halifax Immigrant Learning Centre (HILC)	NGO	7105 Chebucto Rd., #201 Halifax, NS, B3L 4W8	Gerry Mills	gmills@hilc.ns.ca
Metro-Region Immigrant Language Services (MILS)	NGO	Forsyth Centre 136 Pinecrest Drive, Dartmouth	Ann Guy	annguy@staff.ednet.ns.ca
Metropolitan Immigrant Settlement Association (MISA)	NGO	7105 Chebucto Road, Suite 201 Halifax, NS B3L 4W8	Claudette Legault	claudette@misa.ns.ca
Multicultural Association of Fredericton (MCAF)	NGO	123 York Street Fredericton NB E3B 3N6	George Maicher	mcaf@mcaf.nb.ca
Multicultural Association of Greater Moncton Area	NGO	1299A Mountain Road, Suite 2, Moncton, New Brunswick E1C 2T9	Robert Boghen	robert.boghen@nb.aibn.com
Multicultural Association of Nova Scotia (MANS)	NGO	1113 Marginal Rd Halifax, NS, B3H 4P7	Ifty Illyas	admin@mans.ns.ca
African Diaspora Association of the Maritimes	NGO	3657 Dutch Village Rd. Fairview Halifax, Nova Scotia	Joseph Nyemah	office@adamns.ca
Stait-Highlands Regional Development Agency		32 Paint St Unit 5 Port Hawkesbury Nova Scotia, Canada B9A 3J8	Tanya Felix	tania.felix@strait- highlands.ns.ca
Southwest Shore Development Authority	NGO	P.O. Box 131, 233 Water Street Yarmouth NS B5A 1M1	Diane Saulnier	dsaulnier@swsda.com
All Women's Development and Empowerment Association (AWEDA)	NGO	3657 Dutch Village Rd. Fairview Halifax, Nova Scotia	Rosamond Luke	rosamond.luke@aweda.org
Sharing Our Cultures	NGO	Box 28107, 48 Kenmount Road St. John's. NL A1B 4J8	Lloydetta Quaicoe	quaicoe@gmail.com
New Brunswick Multicultural Council	NGO	123 York St., Fredericton, NB, E3B 3N6	George Maicher	maicher@nbnet.nb.ca

Multicultural Council Société des acadiens et acadiens et acadienns et	Inc.				
Adlantic Canada Opportunities Agency Federal Conomic Council Canadian Heritage Citizenship and Immigration Canada Callantic Region) Federal Government Granada Government Government Government Granada Government Government Granada Government Government Government Granada Government Federal Government Government Government Government Government Federal Government Government Government Government Federal Government Government Government Federal Government Government Federal Government Government Federal Federal Government Federal Government Federal Government Federal Federal Government Federal Federal Government Federal Federal Government Federal Federal Federal Government Federal Federal Federal Government Federal Federal Federal Federal Federal Federal	Prince Edward Island Multicultural Council	NGO	University of Prince Edward Island 550 University Avenue		Wrankaduwa@upei.ca
Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency Federal Government Subtraction Atlantic Provinces Conomic Council Conomic Council Government Subtraction Federal Government Canadian Heritage Canadian Heritage Government Canadian Heritage Government Canadian Heritage Government Suite 200 Halifax, NS B3J 158 Citizenship and Immigration Canada (Atlantic Region) Human Resources and Suits Development Canada Rural Secretariat Federal Government Canada Cordination Satistic 200 Halifax, NS B3J 158 Citizenship & Immigration Canada Citizenship & Immigration Citizenship &	Société des acadiens et acadiennes du Nouveau Brunswick	NGO	702, rue Principale, bureau 204 Petit-Rocher, NB, E8J		saanb@nbnet.nb.ca
Opportunities Agency Atlantic Provinces Economic Council Ocorriment Ocordination Halifax, B3J 3C8 Seconomic Council Ocorriment Ocorriment Ocorriment Halifax, Nor Scutia B3J 1K1 Canadian Heritage Ocorriment Ocorriment Ocorriment Ocorriment Ocorriment Halifax, Nor Scutia B3J 1K1 Canadian Heritage Ocorriment Ocorrime	YMCA Centre for Newcomer Services	NGO			barbara_miller@ymca.ca
Economic Council Canadian Heritage Canadian Heritage Federal Government Skills Development Canada Federal Government Canada Federal Government Federal Government Canada Federal Government Canada Federal Government Federal Government Canada Federal Government Federal Government Canada Federal Government Federal Government Federal Government Federal Federal Government Federal Government Federal Govern	Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency		Coordination 1801 Hollis Street, Suite 600 P.O. Box 2284, Station M		
Canadian Heritage Government Gove	Atlantic Provinces Economic Council		Halifax, Nova Scotia		info@apec-econ.ca
Immigration Canada (Atlantic Region)	Canadian Heritage		Canadian Heritage 1869 Upper Water Street, Suite 200	David Burton	david_burton@pch.gc.ca
Skills Development Canada Government Canada Rural Secretariat Federal Government Nova Scotia Office of Immigration New Brunswick Population Growth Secretariat Prince Edward Island Population Secretariat (Department of Development and Technology) Newfoundland and Labrador Immigration Power of P	Citizenship and Immigration Canada (Atlantic Region)		Canada 1741 Brunswick Street	•	tony.brothers @cic.gc.ca
Rural Secretariat Federal Government Gove	Human Resources and Skills Development Canada		Service Canada Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0J9	N/A	N/A
Nova Scotia Office of Immigration Provincial Government Po Box 1535 Halifax NS B3J 2Y3 New Brunswick Population Growth Secretariat Prince Edward Island Population Secretariat (Department of Development and Technology) Provincial Government Provincial Government Provincial Government Provincial Government Provincial Government Confederation Building Po Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL A1B 4J6 Provincial Government Resources, Labour and Employment) Provincial Government Provincial Government Confederation Building Po Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL A1B 4J6 Provincial Government Relizabeth Mills MILLSEA@gov.ns.ca MILLSEA@gov.ns.c	Rural Secretariat		1600 Main Street, Suite 210	Jean Lambert	lambertj@agr.gc.ca
New Brunswick Population Growth Secretariat Prince Edward Island Population Secretariat Prince Edward Island Population Secretariat Prince Edward Island Population Secretariat (Department of Development and Technology) Newfoundland and Labrador Immigration Policy and Planning(Department of Human Resources, Labour and Employment) Provincial Government Chestnut Complex P. O. Box 6000 Fredericton, NB E3B 5H1 94 Euston Street PO Box 910, Charlottetown Prince Edward Island Canada C1A 7L9 Confederation Building P.O. Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL A1B 4J6 Reshraf Ghanem menoonan@gov.pe.ca menoonan@gov.pe.ca Mellie Burke P.O. Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL A1B 4J6	Nova Scotia Office of Immigration		1741 Brunswick Street, Suite 110A PO Box 1535		MILLSEA@gov.ns.ca
Population Secretariat (Department of Development and Technology) Newfoundland and Labrador Immigration Policy and Planning(Department of Human Resources, Labour and Employment) Po Box 910, Charlottetown Prince Edward Island Canada C1A 7L9 Noonan Noonan Noonan Newfoundland and Canada C1A 7L9 Confederation Building P.O. Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL A1B 4J6 A1B 4J6	New Brunswick Population Growth Secretariat		Chestnut Complex P. O. Box 6000 Fredericton, NB		ashraf.ghanem@gnb.ca
Labrador Immigration Policy and Planning(Department of Human Resources, Labour and Employment) Government P.O. Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL A1B 4J6	Prince Edward Island Population Secretariat (Department of Development and Technology)		PO Box 910, Charlottetown Prince Edward Island		menoonan@gov.pe.ca
City of Moncton Municipal Office of the Mayor Lorne Mitton Iorne.mitton@moncton.ca	Newfoundland and Labrador Immigration Policy and Planning(Department of Human Resources, Labour and Employment)		P.O. Box 8700, Prince Philip Drive St. John's, NL	Nellie Burke	nellieburke@gov.nl.ca
	City of Moncton	Municipal	Office of the Mayor	Lorne Mitton	lorne.mitton@moncton.ca

	Government	655 Main Street Moncton, NB E1C 1E8		
City of Dieppe	Municipal Government	Mayor's Office Ville de Dieppe 333, ave. Acadie Dieppe, NB E1A 1G9	Achille Maillet	cabinet.maire@dieppe.ca
Enterprise Greater Moncton	Municipal Government	Attraction and Community Services 910 rue Main Street, Suite 101, Moncton NB E1C 1G6	Eric N. Pelletier	ericpelletier@greatermoncton .org
Greater Halifax Partnership	Municipal Government	1969 Upper Water Street Purdy's Tower II, Suite 2101 Halifax, NS B3J 3R7	Fred Morley	fmorley@greaterhalifax.com
Halifax Immigration Leadership Council	Municipal Government	Suite 201 7105 Chebucto Rd Halifax, NS B3L 4W8	Nabiha Atallah	natallah@misa.ns.ca
Halifax Regional Municipality	Municipal Government	Regional Coordinator Culture & Heritage Operations 40 Alderney Dr. Dartmouth, NS	Holly Richardson	hollyr@halifax.ca
Union of Municipalities of New Brunswick (Federation of Canadian Municipalities)	Municipal Government	Union Municipalities of NB, 79 Main Street, Unit 4 Rexton, NB E4W 1Z9	Raymond Murphy	umnb@nb.aibn.com

APPENDIX 9: ATLANTIC METROPOLIS CENTRE / CENTRE METROPOLIS ATLANTIQUE & DOMAIN FUNDED PROJECTS

ATLANTIC METROPOLIS CENTRE

Title of Project: Principal Investigator(s):	Profiles of Immigrant Communities in Atlantic Canada: The role of networks in attracting, retaining and integrating immigrant men and women in Atlantic Canada Nicole Gallant, Université de Moncton
Co- Researchers?	Ather Akbari, PhD, Saint Mary's University Chedly Belkhodja, PhD, Université de Moncton Annette Boudreau, PhD, Université de Moncton Pauline Gardiner-Barber, PhD, Dalhousie University Lloydetta Quaicoe, P&D Committee, Atlantic Metropolis Centre Howard Ramos, PhD, Dalhousie University Heather Richmond, PhD, Saint Thomas University Evangelia Tastsoglou, PhD, Saint Mary's University Swarna Weerasinghe, PhD, Dalhousie University
Funder, Amount funded:	Centre Métropolis Atlantique - \$105,000.00

CITIZENSHIP AND SOCIAL, CULTURAL AND CIVIC INTEGRATION / CITOYENNETE ET INTEGRATION SOCIALE, CULTURELLE ET CIVIQUE

Project Title	Ethnographic Understanding of Rural Immigration Decision Making Processes
Principal Investigator(s)	Pauline Gardiner-Barber
Start and End Dates	start date 2009 end date 2011
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	To contribute more indepth information on attraction, retention and integration of rural immigrants to Atlantic Canada.
Expected Deliverables	conference paper and working paper
Policy Priority Addressed	 presense or absence of social capital in inegration and inclusion of newcomers; assessment of service delivery in rural areas barriers faced by immigrants immigrant access to information
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	AMC, \$5000

Project Title	"Who Comes, Who Stays and at What Cost?: An Ethnographic and Political Analysis of Nova Scotia's Nominee Programme."
Principal	Pauline Gardiner Barber(Dalhousie U) and Alexandra
Investigator(s)	Dobrowolsky (St. Mary's U.)
Start and End Dates	Start:2008
	End: 2010
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	An ethnographic and political analysis of NS nominee programme (compared to relevant Canadian programmes). Project will identify how immigrants select and identify
	destinations and with what implications for their lives.
Expected Deliverables	Conference paper, journal article, policy dialogue, possible future grant application.
Policy Priority Addressed	Citizenship and Social, Cultural and Civic Integration; Economic and Labour Market Integration; Welcoming Communities: The Role of Host Communities in Attracting, Integrating and Retaining Newcomers and Minorities.
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	Research objectives
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$5000 – SSHRC & Atlantic Metropolis Centre

Project Title	La participation citoyenne chez les jeunes immigrants et leurs parents en milieu minoritaire francophone au Nouveau-Brunswick
Principal Investigator(s)	Aicha Benimmas (Université de Moncton – Enseignement au secondaire et des ressources humaines)
Co-Investigators	Jimmy Bourque (Université de Moncton – Enseignement au secondaire et des ressources humaines)
Start and End Dates	Start: 2008 End: 2010
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	Parmi les jeunes immigrants: comprendre la participation citoyenne, identifier des formes de participation citoyenne, comparer la participation
Expected Deliverables	Publication des articles dans les revues arbitrées.
Policy Priority Addressed	Citoyenneté et intégration sociale, culturelle et civique
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	Addresses questions of attachment and belonging with regard to citizenship and civic participation.
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$20,000 (Centre Metropolis Atlantique)

Project Title	L'acculturation alimentaire chez les immigrants francophones (*) au Nouveau-Brunswick - Que révlent les habitudes alimentaires post-migratoires? Sont-elles favorables au maintien la santé?
Principal Investigator(s)	Carole C. Tranchant (Université de Moncton - Faculté des sciences de la santé et des services)
Co-Investigators	Ibrahim Ouattara
Start and End Dates	Start: 2008 End: 2009
Expected Deliverables	Base de données, rapport final
Policy Priority Addressed	Citoyenneté et intégration sociale, culturelle et civique
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	Relates to question: "What evidence exists on the key determinants of immigrant health?"
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$5000 (Centre Metropolis Atlantique

COLLECTIVITES D'ACCUEIL ET LEUR ROLE DANS L'ATTRAIT, L'INTEGRATION ET LA RETENTION DES NOUVEAUX ARRIVANTS ET DES MEMBRES DES MINORITES

Project Title	Supporting Welcoming Communities for Immigration in Rural and Small Town New Brunswick
Principal	David Bruce (Mount Allison University – Geography/ Rural and
Investigator(s)	Small Town Programme)
Co-Investigators	None
Start and End Dates	Start: 2008 End: 2009
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	Assess the sense of community, social inclusion and social network of residents; assess the receptivity of resident in small towns to immigrants; assess the needs of small towns in their efforts to be welcoming and supportive of immigrants
Expected Deliverables	AMC Working Paper, Final report, Paper at 11 th National Metropolis Conference, Peer-reviewed journal article
Policy Priority Addressed	Welcoming Communities
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$20,000 (Atlantic Metropolis Centre), \$5000 (Province of New Brunswick

Duningt Title	Library de l'Autre en Anadia, Analyse de factours
Project Title	L'image de l'Autre en Acadie: Analyse des facteurs
	communicationnels, culturels et psychosociaux qui construisent
	des représentations positives de l'Autre.
Principal	Sylvia Kasparian
Investigator(s)	
Co-Investigators	
Start and End Dates	Start: <u>2008</u> End: <u>2010</u>
Specific Project-Level	Faire un état des lieux des représentations qu'ont les Acadiens
Research Objectives	des autres communautés; déceler les facteurs sociaux , politiques, culturels, psychosociaux et communicationnels qui forgent des individus, une communauté ouverte à l'Autre.
Expected Deliverables	
Policy Priority Addressed	
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	5 000\$
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	FESR, Université de Moncton-Patromoine Canadien

Project Title	L'intégration des jeunes immigrants à l'école en milieu francophone minoritaire,
Principal	Benimmas Aicha
Investigator(s)	
Co-Investigators	
Start and End Dates	Start: 2008 End: 2011
Specific Project-Level	
Research Objectives	
Expected Deliverables	
Policy Priority	
Addressed	
Specify how this	
Priority was Addressed	
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$20,000

ECONOMIC AND LABOUR MARKET INTEGRATION

List projects completed and projects underway in 2008-2009.

Project Title	Impact of PNP on provincial distribution of immigrants in Canada
Principal Investigator(s)	Ather H. Akbari
Co-Investigators	Barry Edmonston
Start and End Dates	Start:September 06 End: September 09
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	To assess the impact of PNP on immigration attraction and settlement outside of Ontario province
Expected Deliverables	Paper (Presentation made at the last National Metropolis conference, Calgary)
Policy Priority Addressed	Immigrant attraction and settlement
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	Analysis of time series and cross sectional data.
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	5000.00, AMC Pilot project grant

Project Title	Role of communities in integration of new comers in Atlantic Canada
Principal Investigator(s)	Nicole Gallant
Co-Investigators	Akbari, Barber, Dobrowolsky, Llyodetta, Tastsoglou, Weerasinghe
Start and End Dates	Start: <u>2005</u> End: 2009
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	To assess the role of several immigrant communities in Atlantic Canada on integration of newcomers.
Expected Deliverables	Papers, Reports.
Policy Priority Addressed	Immigrant attraction and retention
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	Survey data, census data, interviews
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$105,000 AMC, \$30,000 CIC

GENDER, MIGRATION AND DIVERSITY/ IMMIGRANT WOMEN (ADDRESSING FAMILY, CHILDREN AND YOUTH)

Project Title	"Negotiating Ethno-Cultural Identity among Youth: The Lebanese Second Generation and Beyond in Halifax"	
Principal Investigator(s)	Evangelia Tastsoglou	
Co-Investigators		
Start and End Dates	Start:May 2008 End: August 2009	
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	Ethnographic Study and intensive qualitative interviewing with youth	
Expected Deliverables	Working Paper; Peer reviewed Academic Publication; Conference Paper	
Policy Priority Addressed	Family, Children and Youth; Citizenship & Social, Cultural & Civic Integration; Welcoming Communities	
Specify how this Priority was Addressed		
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$5,000 AMC Pilot Project Grant	

Project Title	"Who Comes, Who Stays, and at What Cost? An Ethnographic and Political Analysis of Nova Scotia's Nominee Programme (NSNP)"
Principal Investigator(s)	Pauline Gardiner-Barber and Alexandra Dobrowolsky
Start and End Dates	Start:May 2008 End: December 2009
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	Ethnographic study (qualitative interviews) and political analysis (literature review; content analysis of government documents, media reports) of the NSPNP
Expected Deliverables	Working Paper; Academic paper; Conference Paper(s); & Policy Dialogue
Policy Priority Addressed	Citizenship & Social, Cultural & Civic Integration; Economic and Labour Market Integration; Welcoming Communities
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$5,000 AMC Pilot Project Grant

Project Title	"Who Cares and Why it Matters: Gender, Transnational Care, Paid Work and Belonging: A Halifax Pilot Project"	
Principal Investigator(s)	Evangelia Tastsoglou and Alexandra Dobrowolsky	
Start and End Dates	Start:May 2008 End: June 2010	
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	Mapping transnational care commitments (local/global) and their implications on citizenship, labour market integration and retention.	
Expected Deliverables	Working Paper; Academic Paper; Conference Paper; Knowledge Transfer; Larger Grant Proposals	
Policy Priority Addressed	Citizenship & Social, Cultural & Civic Integration; Economic and Labour Market Integration; Family, Children and Youth	
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	\$5,000 AMC Pilot Project	

Project Title	Cross Domain Initiative
Principal	Nicole Gallant
Investigator(s)	
Co-Investigators	(all Domain leaders)
Start and End Dates	Start: 2006
Otalit and End Batto	End: 2010
Specific Project-Level	Investigate the role of networks in the attraction, retention and
Research Objectives	integration of immigrants in Atlantic Canadian communities
	through the analysis of focus groups, interviews and surveys.
	through the analysis of focus groups, interviews and surveys.
Expected Deliverables	Articles, books, working papers, conference papers and
	magazine articles.
	magazino artioloo.
Policy Priority	Citizenship & Social, Cultural and Civic Integration; Housing and
Addressed	Neighbourhoods; Welcoming Communities;
Addioood	Troighbeamosae, Troiseming Communice,
Specify how this	
Priority was Addressed	
Thomy was realisated	
Projected Budget (\$)	\$80,000 AMC; \$25,000 AMC; \$30,000 CIC
and Funders	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,

The Cultural Transition of Children and the Effects on Parents in Post-Migration	
Madine VanderPlaat (Saint Mary's University – Department of	
Sociology and Criminology)	
Recent Graduate Joseph Nyemah (African Diaspora	
Association of the Maritimes)	
Start: April, 2008	
ind: March, 2009	
nvestigate how cultural transitions for African immigrant	
hildren living in Halifax affect parenting and family stability	
Vorking Paper, Conference paper at the 11 th National	
Metropolis Conference	
amily, Children and Youth	
Addresses the question of how children and youth construct an	
dentity for themselves, a sense of home and belonging, and a	
ense of origin and descent.	
55000 (Atlantic Metropolis Centre)	

Project Title	"Networking, Belonging and Identity: Highly Skilled Turkish Immigrants in Halifax and Toronto"
Principal Investigator(s)	Evangelia Tastsoglou and Serperi Sevgur
Start and End Dates	Start: January 2009 End: December 2009
Specific Project-Level Research Objectives	Identify the pathways for the integration of HSP in the two cities; compare and contrast; draw implications for belonging
Expected Deliverables	Working paper; journal article; thesis; workshop presentation Calgary 2009 and Montreal 2010.
Policy Priority Addressed	Family, children and youth; citizenship and integration
Specify how this Priority was Addressed	
Projected Budget (\$) and Funders	5000.00, AMC pilot grant

JUSTICE, POLICING AND SECURITY

The AMC did not fund any research projects affiliated with this domain in 2008-2009.

APPENDIX 10: STUDENT TRAINING, RESEARCH AND OUTPUTS

Students Hired for Centre/Domain Projects

Role	Students	Non-Students
Technician		
Professional Research		
Associate		
Consultant		
Administrative Support		
Research Assistants	20	1
Volunteers		
Total	20	1

CENTRE:

Project	Level	Number of Students
Cross Domain Initiative "The Role	MA	1 – Rebecca Rolfe
of Networks in the Attraction,		
Retention and Integration of		
Immigrants in Atlantic Canada"-	BA	1 – Aline Essombe
Individual Interviews and		
Transcription.		
Funded by: Atlantic Metropolis		
Centre		
AMC Intern	BA	1 – Yulduz Kutlieva

<u>Citizenship and Social, Cultural and Civic Integration / Citoyenneté et intégration sociale, culturelle et civique</u>

Project	Level	Number of Students
Newcomer Artist Project	MFA	1 - Maria Frochtengarten
		1 – Ege Edner
	MFA	
Profiles of Immigrant Communities :		1 – Natasha Hanson
the role of networks in the	PhD	
attraction, retention and integration		
of immigrants in Altantic Canada		
Who Comes, Who Stays, and at	PhD	1 - Catherine Bryan
What Cost ?		,

A Shocking	PhD	1 - Brenda Grzetic
Silence: Seasonal Labour Migration		
from Rural Newfoundland and		
Labrador		
Immigrant Youth Leisure Activities	MA	1 - Ashley Goodberry
International Students in Atlantic	MA	1 - Patrick Pearce
Canada		

Collectivités d'accueil et leur rôle dans l'attrait, l'intégration et la rétention des nouveaux arrivants et des membres des minorités

Project	Level	Number of Students
L'image de l'Autre en Acadie:	MA	1 - Philippe Desjardins
Analyse des facteurs		(U de Moncton)
communicationnels, culturels et		,
psychosociaux qui construisent des		
représentations positives de l'Autre.		
Profils de communautés	ВА	1 – Aline Essombe (U de
immigrantes : le rôle des réseaux		Moncton)
dans l'attraction, la rétention et	MA	1 – Tania Duclos
l'intégration des immigrants au		
Canada atlantique		

Economic and Labour Market Integration

Project	Level	Number of Students
Impact of PNP	PhD	Lihui Zhang
Research Assistant	PhD	Azad Haider
Socioeconomic and demographic profiles of immigrant in Atlantic	PhD	1- Azad Haider
Canada – Phase II: Focus on Vibrant Communities	Non student	1- Muhammed Farooq

Gender, Migration and Diversity/ Immigrant Women (Addressing the Family, Children and Youth priority)

Project	Level	Number of Students
"The Cultural Transition of Children and the Effects on Parents in Post Migration"	MA	Joseph Nyemah
"Who Cares and Why it Matters: Gender, Transnational Care, Paid Work and Belonging: A Halifax Pilot Project"	MA	Serperi Sevgur
"Networking, Belonging and Identity: Highly Skilled Turkish Immigrants in Halifax and Toronto"	MA	Serperi Sevgur
"Who Comes, Who Stays, and at What Cost? An Ethnographic and Political Analysis of Nova Scotia's Nominee Programme (NSNP)"	ВА	Michael Hughes Catherine Bryan
Cross-Domain Project	MA	Tanya Barber
"Understanding the role of the church in Addressing the health and lesure needs of female African Nova Scotian youth"	MA	Crystal Watson

Justice, Policing and Security

Information not currently available due to domain restructuring.

Student Research related to Metropolis (AMC), Papers and Theses Ongoing or Completed:

Policy Priority	Citizenship	Economic	Family	Justice	Housing	Welcoming
Undergraduate			1			
Master's	2	1	7	1		1
Doctoral	1					3
Postdoctoral	Not Applicable					
Total	17					

- **1.** Citizenship and Social, Cultural and Civic Integration / Citoyenneté et intégration sociale, culturelle et civique
- 2. Economic and Labour Market Integration
- **3.** Family Children and Youth (Addressed by Gender, Migration and Diversity/Immigrant Women Domain)
- 4. Justice, Policing and Security
- 5. Housing and Neighbourhoods
- **6.** Welcoming Communities/ Collectivités d'accueil et leur rôle dans l'attrait, l'intégration et la rétention des nouveaux arrivants et des membres des minorités

<u>Citizenship and Social, Cultural and Civic Integration / Citoyenneté et intégration sociale, culturelle et civique</u>

Student	Level	University	Title
William	MA	Dalhousie University	An ethnographic study of
Silver			itinerant engineers
Abubakarr	PhD	Dalhousie University	Developing Initiatives to support
Kamara			the labor market integration of international and immigrant
			students.
		 	
Brenda	MA	Dalhousie University	Seasonal Household Migration
Grzetic			from Rural Newfoundland and
			Labrador

Collectivités d'accueil et leur rôle dans l'attrait, l'intégration et la rétention des nouveaux arrivants et des membres des minorités

Student	Level	University	Title
Isabelle Violette	PhD	Université de Moncton	Vers une redéfinition de la francophonie: les transformations sociolinguistiques du milieu minoritaire à partir de l'immigration francophone en Acadie du Nouveau-Brunswick
Carole Fournier	PhD	Université de Sherbrooke	Les représentations sociales des habitants de Saint-Léonard (Nouveau-Brunswick) par rapport à l'immigration qui a lieu dans leur communauté
Stacey Wilson- Forsberg	PhD	University of New Brunswick	Entrepreneurial Social Infrastructure and the Inclusion of Immigrants in non- metropolitan community development initiatives
Philippe Desjardins	MA	Université de Moncton	L'image de l'Autre ou les fondations d'une communauté accueillante : une analyse morpho-syntaxique et sémantique du discours de francophones vivant dans la région de Moncton

Economic and Labour Market Integration

Student	Level	University	Title
Monia Bergeron	MBA	Saint Mary's	Interprovincial mobility of immigrants in Canada

Gender, Migration and Diversity/ Immigrant Women (Family, Children and Youth priority)

Student	Level	University	Title
Nanok Cha	MA	Saint Mary's	Gender Relations in Korean Immigrant Families in Halifax: Continuity and Change
Lori Root	MA	Saint Mary's The Lived Experiences of Filipina Live-In Care Given Halifax	
Wendy Robinson	MA	MSVU/SMU	"Participation Engendering Belonging?"
Yulduz Kutlieva	ВА	Saint Mary's	Honours thesis: "The Marketization of Immigration in Canada: An Historical Overview and Contemporary Comparative Case Study."
Awateef Rasheed	MA		"Iraqi Women: mechanisms of Overshadowing Subordinization and Interiorization"
Jessica Chubb	MA	Saint Mary's	The Gendered Touch: Women's Agency in Security and Peacebuilding in Sierra Leone"
Serperi Sevgur	MA	Dalhousie	Networking, Belonging and Identity: Highly Skilled Turkish Immigrants in Halifax and Toronto
Robert Nathan	MA	Dalhousie	The Africa-France Nexus: Experience and Ideology in Two African Novels

Justice, Policing and Security

Student	Level	University	Title
Chris	MA	Dalhousie University	Policing the Commons
Giacomantonio		-	_

Support provided to students to attend Metropolis Conferences

11th National Metropolis Conference in Calgary, March 19-22, 2009

Name	Level	Institution	Presentation Title
Wade, Andrew	Masters	Université de Moncton	Le Campus : source de diversité régionale? Étude du cas de
			l'Université de Moncton
Bryan, Catherine	PhD	Dalhousie	Unaccompanied and Separated
			Children in Canada: Experiences
			as refugees and as migrant youth
Godin, Gilberte	PhD	Université de	Nos jeunes savent-ils
		Moncton	revendiquer?
Wilson-Forsberg,	PhD	UNB	Do You See Me? The Welcome of
Stacey			Immigrant Adolescents by a Small
			Maritime City
Howard, Laura Lee	Masters	UPEI	Liminality Enlarged by Islandness:
			A case study of the Chinese on
			Prince Edward Island
Sevgur, Serperi	Masters	Dalhousie	Highlights From the Plenary
			Session: More Than Jobs, Jobs,
			Jobs:

Graduate and Undergraduate¹ Studies tied to Metropolis Research and Themes

LEAD UNIVERSITIES:

DALHOUSIE UNIVERSITY:

Programs related to Metropolis themes:

Sociology & Social Anthropology International Development Studies English

Courses offered in migration/immigration studies:

<u>Undergraduate:</u>

Migration and Identity - Department of Sociology & Social Anthropology Migration and Development - Department of International Development Studies Literature, Im/migration and Citizenship – Department of English

Graduate:

Interdisciplinary PhD Program, (Social Anthropology)

** Migration and citizenship are topics occasionally taught in the graduate issues class in the Department of Sociology & Social Anthropology.

UNIVERSITE DE MONCTON:

Programmes liés aux thèmes Metropolis:

Département d'études françaises Département de science politique Département de sociologie École de travail social

Cours sur les études de migration et immigration:

Politique et minorités – Département de science politique.

SAINT MARY'S UNIVERSITY

Programs related to Metropolis themes:

Sociology and Criminology International Development Studies History Irish Studies Religious Studies Women's Studies Political Science

Courses offered in migration/immigration studies:

Undergraduate:

Forced Migration

Power, Equity, Global Issues

¹ for universities where there are no graduate programs.

Gender and International Migration Multiculturalism and Development Seminar in Irish and Scottish Emigration Religious Diversity in Canada

** Immigration is one of the topics regularly covered in the Human Resource Economics (Econ 3340) course and Labour Economics (Econ 3341) courses. Several students enrolled in Econ 3340 write their papers on immigration related topics.

Graduate:

Gender and International Migration Multiculturalism and Development

COLLABORATING UNIVERSITY - Programs and Courses Offered:

MOUNT ALLISON UNIVERSITY:

Programs related to Metropolis themes:

Canadian Studies Sociology Geography

Courses offered in migration/immigration studies:

Undergraduate:

Multiculturalism, Immigration and Diversity in Canada Language and Ethnicity in Canada Inequality in Canadian Society

APPENDIX 11: BUDGET

	Approved Budget 2008-09	Actual	Proposed Budget 2009-10
REVENUE			
Opening balance	37,448	37,448	66,751
Revenues			
SSHRC	307,000	307,000	307,000
Other	30,000	20,449	19,000
		32,629	
		23,000	
Total revenues	374,448	420,526	392,751
EXPENSES			
Transfers			
Moncton Admin.	50,000	50,000	50,000
Domain Operating Funds	20,000	20,000	20,000
Research			
Strategic Grants	80,000	80,000	100,000
Pilot Projects	45,000	45,000	40,000
	10,000	.0,000	.0,000
Halifax Salaries and			
Benefits	75,000	81,738	82,000
Retreat	20,000		20,000
Travel		6,361	
Translation-A/V			
Catering		1100	
Other		397	
Travel			
National Conference	28,000	38,691	28,000
International Conference Other	5000	10,404 11,955	10,000
Other	5000	11,955	12,000
Operating			
Telecommunications		562	500
Material/Supplies/Printing	5000	3270	5000
Equipment	750		750
Translation (Halifax)	1000	543	500
Knowledge Translation	30,000	3,754	20,000
-		·	
Total Expenses	359,750	353,775	388,750
Balance	14,698	66,751	4,001

APPENDIX 12: EXTERNAL FUNDING SECURED BY AMC AND DOMAINS

<u>CITIZENSHIP AND SOCIAL, CULTURAL AND CIVIC INTEGRATION /</u> <u>CITOYENNETE ET INTEGRATION SOCIALE, CULTURELLE ET CIVIQUE</u>

Project: Immigration policy in the EU: The 'management' of

immigrant integration (phase II).

Funder: European Commission. 399,769 **PI:** Dr. Finn Laursen and Dr. Robert Boardman Euros **Co-Researchers:** Dr. Pauline Gardiner Barber, Dr. David (\$621,585)

Black, Dr. Florian Bail, Dr. Frank Harvey, Dr. Jerome Davis, Dr.

Katherine Fierlbeck, Dr. Christian Marfels

Completion Date: 2009

Project: Canada and Sub-Saharan Africa in the New

Millenium

Funder: SSHRC \$76,283

PI: David Black, Dalhousie University

Completion Date: 2010

(Ongoing projects)

Project: Elizabeth Barrett Browning Scholarly Edition and

Archive; Nation, Migration and Citizenship in the

Nineteenth Century

Funder: SSHRC, \$39,826

PI: Marjorie Stone, Dalhousie University

Completion Date: 2009

Project: Mapping the Canadian Marketplace of Ideas:

Media and Political Opportunities of Aboriginal, Environmental,

Gay and Lesbian, and Women's Advocacy

Funder: SSHRC \$95,600

PI: Howard Ramos Completion Date: 2009

Project: Engaging New Canadians in Coaching and the

National Coaching Certification Program (NCCP)

Funder: Coaching Association of Canada \$13,365

PI: Dr. Susan Tirone

Co-Researchers: Lori Livingston, Jordan Miller and Emma

Smith (Dalhousie University)

Completion Date: 2008

Project: Performed Subordination: Global Migration and New

Economic Subjectivities

Funder: SSHRC \$88,600

PI: Dr. Pauline Gardiner Barber and Dr. Belinda Leach

Completion Date: 2009

COLLECTIVITES D'ACCUEIL ET LEUR ROLE DANS L'ATTRAIT, L'INTEGRATION ET LA RETENTION DES NOUVEAUX ARRIVANTS ET DES MEMBRES DES MINORITES

Project: Welcoming communities; Exploring social engagement

and inclusion of immigrants in Atlantic Canada

PI: Susan Tirone & Shannon Sullivan

Funder: Government of Newfoundland & Labrador Immigration

and Settlement Research Fund \$6795

Completion Date: 2009

Project: Les minorités linguistiques face à l'immigration.

Funder: ICRML \$6000

PI: Christophe Traisnel, Université de Moncton

Completion Date: 2010

Project: L'image de l'Autre en Acadie: Analyse des facteurs

communicationnels, culturels et psychosociaux qui construisent des

représentations positives de l'Autre.

Funder: FESR, Université de Moncton, Patrimoine Canadien \$5000

PI: Sylvia Kasparian End Date: 2010

ECONOMIC AND LABOUR MARKET INTEGRATION

Project: Socioeconomic and demographic profiles of immigrants

in Atlantic Canada – focus on vibrant communities

Funder: CIC \$25,000

PI: Ather Akbari, Saint Mary's University Co-Investigator: Wimal Rankaduwa, UPEI

Completion Date: December 2008

Project: An Update of the Atlantic report on immigrant profiles

Funder: ACOA \$36,000

PI: Ather Akbari, Saint Mary's University

Completion Date: October 2009

Project: Immigration and recession in Canada

Funder: Saint Mary's University \$1800

PI: Ather Akbari

Completion Date: March 2010

Project: Immigration and housing prices in Canada

Funder: Saint Mary's University \$1800

PI: Ather Akbari & Yigit Aydede Completion Date: September 2009

(Ongoing projects)

Project: Socioeconomic and demographic profiles of immigrants in Atlantic Canada – Phase II: Focus on Vibrant Communities

Funder: Citizenship and Immigration Canada \$25,000

PI: Ather Akbari

Co-Researchers: N/A Completion Date: 2008

Project: Socioeconomic and Demographic Profiles of

Immigrants to Atlantic Canada

Funder: ACOA, Rural Secretariat, Atlantic Provinces Provincial

Governments \$45,000

PI: Ather Akbari

Co-researchers: Ted Mcdonald, University of New Brunswick; Scott Lynch, Memorial University; Wimal Rankaduwa, University

of Prince Edward Island

Completion Date: December 2008

GENDER, MIGRATION AND DIVERSITY/ IMMIGRANT WOMEN (FAMILY, CHILDREN AND YOUTH PRIORITY)

Project: Development of International Feminist University

Network

Funder: Ford Foundation \$117,000

PI: Linda Christiansen-Ruffman Completion Date: June 2008

(Ongoing projects)

Project: Attraction, Promotion and Retention of Immigrants in

Atlantic Canada

Funder: Citizenship and Immigration \$10,000

PI: Evie Tastsoglou

Co-Researchers: Maria Jose Yax-Fraser

Completion Date: 2008

Project: L'impact des lois antiterroristes. La Loi sur l'Immigration et la loi sur la protection des Refugiies. L' Introspection de la Communaute Arabe et Musulmane du Nouveau - Brunswick et de la Nouvelle - Ecosse.

Funder: Canadian Race Relations Foundation

Pls: Cyprien Okana, Evie Tastsoglou, Chedly Belkhodja

Completion Date: 2008

EXTERNAL FUNDING TOTAL: \$1,821,054
Ongoing and Continued projects: \$342,391
New External Funding total: \$1,478,663

\$25,000

APPENDIX 13: 2008 ANNUAL POLICY RESEARCH SYMPOSIUM AGENDA AND PARTICIPANTS LIST

Centre Metropolis Atlantique - 5 ^{ième} Symposium annuelle le 21 mai 2008 – Université de Moncton Moncton, NB



Centre Métropolis Atlantique Atlantic Metropolis Centre

Atlantic Metropolis Centre Annual Policy Research Symposium May 21, 2008 – Université de Moncton

Location: 148 G2 of Pavillon de l'ingénierie (Faculty of Engineering)

8:30 - 9:30 Registration and Breakfast

9:30 - 9:45 Welcome from AMC Directors

Chedly Belkhodja, Université de Moncton Marguerite Cassin, Dalhousie University Madine VanderPlaat, Saint Mary's University

9:45 - 11:00 Justice, Policing and Security

Moderator: Marguerite Cassin, Atlantic Metropolis Centre Director Mirsada Karabegovic, LLB

Access to Justice: A Preliminary Needs and Capacity Assessment for the Atlantic Immigrant Community. Preliminary Findings and Recommendations

Chris Murphy, leader of the Justice, Policing and Security domain and Chair of the Sociology and Social Anthropology Department, Dalhousie University

The Challenges and Possibilities of a Policy-Research Agenda for the AMC

11:00 - 11:15 Nutrition Break

11:15 - 12:30 Welcoming Communities

This session will examine the case of a recent influx of Korean immigrants in Moncton.

Chedly Belkhodja, Welcoming Communities Priority Leader

Sandra Foreman, District 2 Councillor, Moncton

Ann Kim, Assistant Professor, Department of Sociology, York University

The Economic Integration of Korean Immigrants and Consequences
for Social Engagement

Cheon Ae Park, President, Moncton Korean Association of NB Nanok Cha, Saint Mary's University

Korean Immigrant Women's Challenges Regarding Unequal Gender Relations in the Family and the Community in Halifax

12:30 - 1:00 Discussion

1:00 - 2:00 Lunch

AMC Meetings

8:00 – 9:15 AM Program and Dissemination Committee Working Breakfast

Location: Room 152 G1, Pavillon de l'ingénierie (Faculty of Engineering)

1:30 – 3:00 PM Atlantic Metropolis Centre Board of Directors Meeting

Location: Room B218, Pavillon-Jeanne-de-Valois



Centre Métropolis Atlantique Atlantic Metropolis Centre

Centre Métropolis Atlantique Symposium de recherche en politiques 2008 21 mai, 2008 – Université de Moncton

8:30 - 9:30 Inscription et déjeuner

9:30 - 9:45 Mot de bienvenue des directeurs du CMA

Chedly Belkhodja, Université de Moncton Marguerite Cassin, Dalhousie University Madine VanderPlaat, Saint Mary's University

9:45 - 11:00 Justice, services de police et sécurité

Animateur : Marguerite Cassin, Directrice du Centre Métropolis Atlantique Mirsada Karabegovic, LLB

Access to Justice: A Preliminary Needs and Capacity Assessment for the Atlantic Immigrant Community. Preliminary Findings and Recommendations

Chris Murphy, chef du volet Justice, services de police et sécurité et chaire du département de sociologie et anthropologie sociale à Dalhousie University

The Challenges and Possibilities of a Policy-Research Agenda for the Atlantic Metropolis Centre

11:00 - 11:15 Pause-santé

11:15 - 12:30 Communautés accueillantes:

Cette session présentera le cas de l'arrivée comparativement importante d'immigrants d'origine coréenne à Moncton.

Chedly Belkhodja, leader prioritaire du domaine « communautés accueillantes »

Sandra Foreman, Districte scolaire #2, Moncton

Ann Kim, Assistant Professor, Department of Sociology, York University

The Economic Integration of Korean Immigrants and

Consequences for Social Engagement

Cheon Ae Park, Présidente, Moncton Korean Association of NB Nanok Cha, Saint Mary's University

Korean Immigrant Women's Challenges Regarding Unequal Gender Relations in the Family and the Community in Halifax

12:30 – 1:00 Discussion

1:00 - 2:00 Dîner

Rencontres du CMA

8:00 – 9:15 AM Déjeuner/réunion du comité de programmes et dissémination

Dans la salle152 G1 du Pavillon de l'ingénierie

1:30 – 3:00 PM Réunion du conseil d'administration du CMA

Dans la salle B218, Pavillon-Jeanne-de-Valois

2008 Policy Research Symposium Participants List May 21, University of Moncton, Moncton, New Brunswick

Last Name	First Name	Affiliation
Akbari	Ather	Saint Mary's University
Arsenault	Kevin	PEI Association for Newcomers
Aubin	Danielle	Public Safety Canada
Bahtijarevic	Aida	
Barber	Lachlan	Atlantic Metropolis Centre
Baldacchino	Godfrey	University of Prince Edward Island
Bamford	Lisa	
Belkhodja	Chedly	Université de Moncton
Benimmas	Aïcha	Université de Moncton
Boghen	Andrew	Université de Moncton
Bourque	Jimmy	Acadia University
Brothers	Tony	CIC Atlantic
Bruce	David	Mount Allison University
Burton	David	Canadian Heritage
Cassin	Maruerite	Dalhousie University
Cha	Nanok	Saint Mary's University
Chareka	Ottila	St FX University
Deneut	Jérémie	Canadian Heritage
Dobrowolsky	Alexandra	Saint Mary's University
Duclos	Tania	Centre Metropolis Atlantique
Eun Im	Jenna (Jeung)	
Flint	David	Dalhousie University
Foreman	Sandra	Districte scolaire #2, Moncton
Hanson	Natasha	Dalhousie University
Karabegovic	Mirsada	LLB
Kim	Ann	York University
Lafrance	Laure	Metropolis Institute
Lambert	Jean	Secrétariat Rural, Région Atlantique
Maicher	George	New Brunswick Multicultural Council
Mandale	Maurice	Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency
McDonald	Ted	University of New Brunswick
Mills	Gerry	Multicultural Association of Nova Scotia
Morris	Megan	NL Association for New Canadians
Morris	Steven	Metropolis Institute
Murphy	Chris	Dalhousie University
Ouattara	Ibrahim	Université de Moncton
Ouelette	Denise	MAGMA
Park	Cheon Ae	Moncton Korean Association of NB
Poirier	Tina	
Quaicoe	Lloydetta	Sharing Our Cultures
Salih-Zajmi	Semra	
Stewart	William	

Tailleu	Lucille	CAIIMM
Tremblay	Reeta	Memorial University
VanderPlaat	Madine	Saint Mary's University
Wright	Don	University of New Brunswick
Yax-Fraser	Maria-Jose	Dalhousie University